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2,480,340 2,539,235 2,392,559 2,228,050 2,400,898
863,414 975,192 892,289 547,406 337,615
688,604 755,393 685,555 384,547 193,060

688,604 755,393 601,000 266,349 75,186
- - 84,555 118,198 117,875
- - : : ®

688,717 755,319 672,708 373,538 238,351

688,717 755,319 588,153 255,340 120,477
- - 84,555 118,198 117,875

- - - - ®
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9,250,078 9,767,142 9,606,826 11,446,308 12,026,843
%) 87.1 79.7 77.5 83.3 80.0
1,085,880 1,146,414 1,255,876 1,164,832 1,261,927
/  (246,412) (105,351) 456,867  (270,126) 455,490
(1,105,483) (663,586) (2,774,728) (980,151) (457,956)
3,947,250 4,214,237 3,833,904 4,963,436 5,002,063
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
6,132,442 5,907,665 4,711,999 6,846,187 6,803,640
6,549,992 6,394,043 5,376,827 7,102,541 7,043,162
(%) 93.6 92.4 87.6 96.4 96.6
3,529,675 3,328,660 2,868,836 3,771,777 3,565,367
1984
1931 2004
1984 16
1986 1986 11 19
1987 1987 20
1993 1993
2005 2005 12 12
2006
2006 12
Resorts World Sentosa RWS
2007 2007 16 RWS
2008 2008 24
RWSPL
40
2009 2009 27
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863,414 975,192 (11)
688,604 755,393 ©)
688,604 755,393 )
688,717 755,319 ©)
688,717 755,319 )
5.71 6.27 )
12 31
2019 2018 /
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/
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2019 22 7000 8000
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2019 2018 /
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12,094,026,824
29,221,850
2020
12,094,026,824
29,221,850
- 12,094,026,824 |- _
29,221,850
@
©)
2020
2015 300,631 | 12,106,880,518 62,077 5,573,112,420|ES0S
2015 12 | (10,786,000) | 12,096,094,518|  (11,558,088)| 5,561,554,332
2015 19 362,937 | 12,096,457,455 76,086| 5,561,630,418|ES0S
22
2015 26 9,595,000 12,106,052,455 -| 5,561,630,418|PSS
2015 13 | (16,659,600) | 12,089,392,855|  (16,821,936) | 5,544,808,482
2015 1,367,115 12,090,759,970 291,716 5,545,100,198|ESOS

20
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2015 (11,989,400) | 12,078,770,570|  (11,076,198) | 5,534,024,000
2015 1,168,525| 12,079,939,095 251,630| 5,534,275,630|ESOS
2015 15 | (10,255,200) | 12,069,683,895 (9,498,240) | 5,524,777,390
2015 22 1,804,620| 12,071,488,515 389,506| 5,525,166,896 | ESOS
2015 24 8,757,550| 12,080,246,065 -| 5,525,166,896 | PSS
2015 29 11,780,759 | 12,092,026,824 2,538,530| 5,527,705,426|ESOS
10
2015 12 23 2,000,000 12,094,026,824 -| 5,527,705,426 | PSS
)
2020 15.87%
84.13%
) % %
- 99 594 0.77 12,000 0.00
100 - 1,000 7,748 10.09 4,850,295 0.04
1,001 - 10,000 38,231 49.76 216,541,268 1.80
10,001 - 1,000,000 30,128 39.21 1,520,696,316 12.60
1,000,001 131 0.17 10,322,705,095 85.56
76,832 100.00 12,057,234,674 100.00
®)
2020
b
6,353,685, 269 52.66
1,030,934,796 8.54
884,878,275 7.33
417,099,097 3.46
277,255,147 2.30
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177,093,862 1.47
173,629,886 1.44
114,484,570 0.95
94,402,423 0.78
9,714,492,935 80.51
2020
%
% %
GOHL 6,353,685,269 52.6630 - -
GENT - - 6,353,685,269 52.6630
142,800 0.0012 6,353,685,269 52.6630
Kien Huat Reality Sdn
Berhad KHR
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6642
Kien Huat
International Limited
KHI
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6642
14,945,063 0.1238 6,353,828,069 52.6642
LKT
- - 6,353,828,069 52 6642
LKT GENT GENT GENT

LKT
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LKT
KHI KHR
KHR GOHL
LKT
LKT
2018 12 31 (a)2018
2018 9 20 0.015 (b)

2019 17 AGM 2019 23

0.02

2019 12 31 (2)2019
2019 20 0.015 (b)

2020 28 AGM 2020 30

0.025
€H)
A.
Q)

2018
2018
TOR
2018

TOR
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OIRTONIO! O ORI PN
9,500,000
9,750,000
0.4] 52.8|46.7 0.1 0.0 100 750,000
6,250,000
6,500,000
0.5]| 45.5|53.7 0.3 0.0 100 2,250,000
250,000
500,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
250,000
100 0.0] 0.0 0.0 0.0 100
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2019 2018
4 2,480,340 189,572,386 2,539,235 194,073,731
(1.451,319) (110,924,311) (1,385,409) (105,886,810)
1,029,021 78,648,075 1,153,826 88,186,921
14,417 1,101,891 6,201 473,942
80,073 6,119,979 72,342 5,529,099
(193,806) (14,812,593) (183,307)  (14,010,154)
(61,682)  (4,714,355) (62,751)  (4,796,059)
(4,609) (352,266) (11,119) (849,825)
863,414 65,990,732 975,192 74,533,925
5 (20,495)  (1.,566,433) (35,913)  (2,744,831)
3,987 304,726 3,959 302,586
6 846,906 64,729,026 943,238 72,091,680
7 (158,302) (12,099,022) (187,845)  (14,356,993)
688,604 52,630,004 755,393 57,734,687
688,604 52,630,004 755,393 57,734,687
113 8,637 (74) (5,656)
113 8,637 74 (5,656)
688,717 52,638,640 755,319 57,729,031
688,717 52,638,640 755,319 57,729,031

2019 2018

5.71 4 6.27
5.71 4 6.27
101,128,000 2018
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2019 12 31

2019 2018 2019 2018
9 4,667,062 4,857,046 143 130
10 152,880 103,313 - -
11 62,239 58,252 - -
12 - - 2,218,522 2,315,995
13 276 17 - -
14 233,251 221,131 - -
15 971 1,543 388,541 389,562
5,116,679 5,241,456 2,607,206 2,705,687
16 48,695 48,806 - -
15 137,454 143,792 413,111 359,696
17 - 118,851 - -
17 3,947,250 4,214,237 3,529,675 3,328,660
4,133,399 4,525,686 3,942,786 3,688,356
18 489,474 454,764 155,177 202,074
19 3,991 206,375 56 -
209,906 201,573 15,471 38,448
703,371 862,712 170,704 240,522
3,430,028 3,662,974 3,772,082 3,447,834
8,546,707 8,904,430 6,379,288 6,153,521
22 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
22 (29,541) (35,349) (29,541) (35,349)
23 16,774 15,242 9,475 7,977
2,542,651 2,273,747 624,803 407,332
8,057,589 7,781,345 6,132,442 5,907,665
2 2 - -
8,057,591 7,781,347 6,132,442 5,907,665
13 231,382 288,728 - -
19 256,654 832,195 246,789 245,799
24 263 490 57 57
18 817 1,670 - -
489,116 1,123,083 246,846 245,856
8,546,707 8,904,430 6,379,288 6,153,521

57 112
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2019 12 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
9 356,703,549 371,224,026 10,929 9,936
10 11,684,618 7,896,213 - -
11 4,756,927 4,452,200 - -
12 - - 169,561,636 177,011,498
13 21,095 13,070 - -
14 17,827,374 16,901,042 - -
15 74,214 117,931 29,606,189 29,774,224
391,067,776 400,604,482 199,268,755 206,795,657
16 3,721,759 3,730,243 - -
15 10,505,609 10,990,023 31,574,074 27,491,565
17 - 9,083,782 - -
17 301,688,318 322,094,134 260,773,060 254,409,484
315,915,686 345,898,181 301,347,134 281,901,049
18 37,410,498 34,757,613 11,860,178 15,444,516
19 305,032 15,773,241 4,280 -
16,043,116 15,406,224 1,182,449 2,938,581
53,758,646 65,937,078 13,046,907 18,383,096
262,157,040 279,961,103 288,300,227 263,517,953
653,224,816 680,565,585 487,568,982 470,313,610
22 422,482,493 422,482,493 422,482,493 422,482,493
22 (2,257,819)  (2,701,724) (2,257,819)  (2,701,724)
23 1,282,037 1,164,946 724,174 609, 682
194,334,816 173,782,483 47,753,603 31,132,385
615,841,527 594,728,198 468,702,542 451,522,836
153 153 - -
615,841,680 594,728,351 468,702,542 451,522,836
13 17,684,526 22,067,481 - -
19 19,616,065 63,604,664 18,862,083 18,786,418
24 20,101 37,451 4,357 4,357
18 62,443 127,638 - -
37,383,136 85,837,234 18,866,440 18,790,774
653,224,816 680,565,585 487,568,982 470,313,610
57 112
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2019 12 31
2019

2019 12 31

57 112

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 7,182 2,273,747 7,781,345 2 7,781,347
- - - - 688,604 688,604 - 688,604
- - - 113 - 113 - 113
- - 9,530 - - 9,530 - 9,530
- 5,808 (8,111) - 2,303 - - -
- - - - (422,003) (422,003) - (422,003)
- 5,808 1,419 - (419,700) (412,473) - (412,473)
5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 7,295 2,542,651 8,057,589 2 8,057,591
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2018

2018 12 31

57

112

EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

OoOoooooo

5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 7,256 1,936,823 7,438,395 7,438,397
- - - - 755,393 755,393 755,393
- - - 74 - 74 74
- - 9,206 - - 9,206 9,206
- 9,083 (12,189) - 3,106 - -
- - - - (421,575) (421,575) (421,575)
- 9,083 (2,983) - (418,469) (412,369) (412,369)

5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 7,182 2,273,747 7,781,345 7,781,347

61/206



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2019 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 (83) 407,332 5,907,665
- - - - 637,171 637,171
- - - 79 - 79
- - 9,530 - - 9,530
- 5,808 (8,111) - 2,303 -
- - - - (422,003) (422,003)
- 5,808 1,419 - (419,700) (412,473)

2019 12 31 5,527,705 (29,541) 9,479 [0) 624,803 6,132,442

57 112

62/206



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2018 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 22 (782,339) 4,711,999
- - - - 1,608,140 1,608,140
- - - (105) - (105)
- - 9,206 - - 9,206
- 9,083 (12,189) - 3,106 -
_ _ - - (421,575) (421,575)
- 9,083 (2,983) - (418,469) (412,369)

2018 12 31 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 (83) 407,332 5,907,665

57 112

63/206



2019 12 31
2019

2019 12 31

57 112

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

422,482,493 (2,701,724) 616,026 548,920 173,782,483 594,728,198 153 594,728,351
- - - - 52,630,004 52,630,004 - 52,630,004
- - - 8,637 - 8,637 - 8,637
- - 728,378 - - 728,378 - 728,378
- 443,905 (619,924) - 176,018 - - -
- - - - (32,253,689) (32,253,689) - (32,253,689)
- 443,905 108,454 - (32,077,671) (31,525,311) - (31,525,311)
422,482,493 (2,257,819) 724,480 557,557 194,334,816 615,841,527 153 615,841,680

64/206



2018

2018 12 31

57

112

EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

OoOoooooo

422,482,493 (3,395,938) 844,016 554,576 148,031,382 568,516,530 153 568,516,683
- - - - 57,734,687 57,734,687 - 57,734,687
- - - (5,656) - (5,656) - (5,656)
- - 703,615 - - 703,615 - 703,615
- 694,214 (931,605) - 237,392 - - -
- - - - (32,220,977) (32,220,977) - (32,220,977)
- 694,214 (227,991) - (31,983,586) (31,517,363) - (31,517,363)

422,482,493 (2,701,724) 616,026 548,920 173,782,483 594,728,198 153 594,728,351

65/206



2019

2019 12 31

57

112

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

422,482,493 (2,701,724) 616,026 (6,344) 31,132,385 451,522,836
- - - - 48,698,980 48,698,980
- - - 6,038 - 6,038
- - 728,378 - - 728,378
- 443,905 (619,924) - 176,018 -
- - - - (32,253,689) (32,253,689)
- 443,905 108,454 - (32,077,671) (31,525, 311)

422,482,493 (2.257,819) 724,480 (306) 47,753,693 468,702,542

66/206



EDINETOOOO

OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

2018 422,482,493 (3,395,938) 844,016 1,681 (59,794,170) 360,138,084
- - - - 122,910,140 122,910,140
- - - (8,025) - (8.,025)
- - 703,615 - - 703,615
- 694,214 (931,605) - 237,392 -
- - - - (32,220,977) (32,220,977)
- 694,214 (227,991) - (31,983,586) (31,517,363)

2018 12 31 422,482,493 (2,701,724) 616,026 (6,344) 31,132,385 451,522,836

57 112

67/206

OoOoooooo



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2019 12 31
2019 2018
A 1,085,880 82,993,808 1,146,414 87,620,422
834 63,743 3,372 257,722
(171,534)  (13,110,344) (119,625)  (9,142,939)
(75.712)  (5.786,668) (2,477) (189,317)
- - 11,904 909,823
- - 1,475 112,734
(246,412) (18,833,269) (105,351)  (8,051,977)
(12,529) (957,591) (26,862)  (2,053,063)
(422,003) (32,253,689) (421,575)  (32,220,977)
(785,000)  (59,997,550) (210,000)  (16,050,300)
(4,802) (367,017) (3,574) (273,161)
118,851 9,083,782 (1,575) (120,377)
(1,105,483)  (84,492,066) (663,586)  (50,717,878)
(266,015)  (20,331,526) 377,477 28,850,567
4,214,237 322,094,134 3,833,004 293,025,283
(266,015)  (20,331,526) 377,477 28,850,567
(972) (74,290) 2,856 218,284
17 3,947,250 301,688,318 4,214,237 322,004,134

57 112
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57

112

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2019 2018
846,906 64,729,026 943,238 72,091,680
363,656 27,794,228 201,541 22,282,479
(862) (65,883) (2,978) (227,609)
1,281 97,907 2,522 192,756
294 22,470 3,208 245,187
26,145 1,998,262 23,976 1,832,486
8,753 668,992 8,857 676,941
101,128 7,729,213 58,070 4,438,290
(13,551)  (1,035,703) (3,097) (236,704)
- - (118) (9,019)
9,530 728,378 9,206 703,615
792 60,533 2,434 186,031
11,742 897,441 27,056 2,067,890
2,425 185,343 (4,645) (355,017)
(80,073)  (6,119,979) (72,342)  (5,529,099)
(3.987) (304,726) (3,959) (302,586)
(156) (11,923) 58 4,433
427,117 32,644,552 339,789 25,970,073
1,274,023 97,373,578 1,283,027 98,061,754
(682) (52,125) (2,640) (201,775)
(100,987)  (7,718,436) (57,653)  (4,406,419)
34,895 2,667,025 51,866 3,964,118
(66,774)  (5,103,537) (8,427) (644,076)
1,207,249 92,270,041 1,274,600 97,417,678
86,116 6,581,846 53,172 4,063,936
(207,414)  (15,852,652) (181,319)  (13,858,211)
(71) (5,427) (39) (2,981)
1,085,880 82,993,808 1,146,414 87,620,422
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2019

2018

2019

2018

57

112

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
(785,000) (4,802) - (789,802)
- 4,422 - 4,422
- 1,772) - 1,772)
- Q47) 621 474
8,387 - 366 8,753
- 13,859 246,786 260,645
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
(210,000) (3,574) - (213,574)
- 16,938 - 16,938
- 149 10,200 10,349
8,510 - 347 8,857
776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
59,356,532 1,234,956 18,786,418 79,377,905
(59,997,550) (367,017) - (60,364,567)
- 337,973 - 337,973
- (135,434) - (135,434)
- (11,235) 47,463 36,228
641,018 - 27,973 668,992
- 1,059,243 18,861,854 19,921,097
74,756,412 202,157 17,980,310 92,938,880
(16,050, 300) (273,161) - (16,323,461)
- 1,294,571 - 1,294,571
- 11,388 779,586 790,974
650,419 - 26,521 676,941
59,356,532 1,234,956 18,786,418 79,377,905
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31
1.
SGX-ST
098270
10
2.
2.1
SFRS(D)s
SFRS(D)s
2019
2019 2019
SFRS(1)s
SFRS(1) 16
SFRS(1) 16
@
SFRS(1) 16 SFRS(1)  1-17
ROU
2019 1 1
ROU
2019 1 1
ROU
SFRS(I) 16

() 2019 1 1

71/206



)

2019 1 1
2018 12 31

1

2018 12 31

2018 12 31

2019 1 1

®

2.2
€))
()

()

721206

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

ooooOoog
12
2019 1
4,745 385
(421) (6)
(811) -
16,158 -
19,671 379
5,161 324
14,510 55
19,671 379




EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

)

) )

®)
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2.3

2.4

2.5

©

74/206

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

25
30 99
2 5
10 35
5 15

oOoOooodn



2.6

@

®

CGUs

CGUs
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

60 99
30 60

CGUs



2.7

©

@

10
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

35



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

0OO00000
2.8

CGUs
2.9

@

®

©

@

77/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

©

27(d)

2.10

2.11

2.12

12

2.13

2.14

@
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

®)

©

1991

12

@
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2.15

2.16

12

2.17

2019

@

®)

©

2019 1 1

@
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

ROU

ROU ROU

ROU

ROU ROU

ROU

ROU ROU

12

®

SFRS(1) 16
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2.18

@

®

2.19

82/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2.20

@

®

©

)
()

()

2.21

2.22

2.23
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

@

13

(b)

2019 12 31 410,618,000

27(d)
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EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

85/206

2019 2018
1,619,667 1,678,987
225,348 225,094
467,411 446,145
139,630 162,996
832,389 834,235
27,495 24,939
789 1,074
2,480,340 2,539,235
2019 2018
7,080 21,862
1,674 1,637
1,615 1,157
8,753 8,857
1,373 2,400
20,495 35,913




EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oOoOooodn
2019 2018
- 1,446 1,500
- 18,860 19,298
(@)
- 448,103 456,672
- 42,872 46,354
- (156) 58
- 6,855 5,651
- 1,735 1,806
- 61 61
762 542
@ 282,640 297,846
363,656 291,541
26,145 23,976
101,128 58,070
792 2,434
- - (118)
- (862) (2,978)
_ (13,551) (3,097)
- 1,281 2,522
- 294 3,208
- 3,034 5,388
1,324 4,844
50,641 47,582
49,281 46,293
25,390 17,668
™ 3,402,000 2018 4,936,000

&)

86/206



17

87/206

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2019 2018

200,234 184,101
(31,887) 2,831
168,347 186,932
15,519 (1,505)
(25,564) 2,418
(10,045) 913
158,302 187,845
846,906 943,238
(3,987) (3,959)
842,919 939,279
143,296 159,677
26,671 29,934
(10,045) 913
(6,555) (6,443)
(199) (593)
(1,050) (1,004)
2,217 1,297
3,967 4,064
158,302 187,845




EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018
688,604 755,393

2019 2018
12,056,144 12,044,309
11,839 11,704
12,067,983 12,056,013

2019 2018
5.71 6.27
5.71 6.27

88/206



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

Oooooooo
2019
132,445 18,192 3,901,936 1,024,153 2,475,417 24,994 17,346 7,594,483
SFRS(1) 16 2.1 - - 2,106 1,407 - - - 3,513
- - (448) @ - - - (449)
- 470 5,383 40,692 9,836 82 112,820 169,283
- - - (10,389) - ®) - (10,394)
- - (958) (19,893) (6,028) (84) - (26,963)
- 30 2 16,821 - - (16,872) -
- - 1,208 2,224 889 14 - 4,335
132,445 18,602 3,909,248 1,055,014 2,480,114 25,001 113,294 7,733,808
- 5,612 735,739 925,147 1,058,672 12,267 - 2,737,437
- - (302) ) - - - (309)
- 738 118,793 32,747 209,710 1,668 - 363,656
- - - (8,646) - ® - (8,650)
- - (680) (19,529) (5.465) ® - (25,682)
- - 294 - - - - 294
- 6,350 853,844 929,712 1,262,917 13,923 - 3,066,746
132,445 12,342 3,055,404 125,302 1,217,197 11,078 113,294 4,667,062

89/206



EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

2018
132,445 18,162 3,905,712 989,307 2,467,673 24,403 10,342 7,548,044

- - (653) 29 - - - (624)
- 30 5,652 61,295 9,022 770 13,050 89,819

- - - (15,243) ®7 - - (15,330)

- - (1,448) (20,169) (1,961) (179) - (23,757)
- - - 6,046 - - (6,046) -

- - (7,327) 2,888 770 - - (3,669)
132,445 18,192 3,901,936 1,024,153 2,475,417 24,994 17,346 7,594,483
- 4,887 636,631 898,511 928,465 10,693 - 2,479,187

- - (340) 12 - - - (328)
- 725 96,780 61,458 130,957 1,621 - 291,541

- - - (14,899) €D)) - - (14,936)

- - (540) (19,935) (713) IC5)) - (21,235)
- - 3,208 - - - - 3,208
- 5,612 735,739 925,147 1,058,672 12,267 - 2,737,437
132,445 12,580 3,166,197 99,006 1,416,745 12,727 17,346 4,857,046

90/206

OoOoooooo



2019

SFRS(1) 16 2.1

2018

2018 12 31
16,938,000

2019  SFRS(1) 16

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

- 388 16 404

379 - - 379

- 34 - 34

- 16 (16) -

379 438 - 817

- 274 - 274

324 76 - 400

324 350 - 674

55 88 - 143

- 359 - 359

- 29 16 45

- 388 16 404

- 207 - 207

- 67 - 67

- 274 - 274

- 114 16 130

763,401,000 15,732,000 2018
ROU

91/206

20



EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
10.
2019
1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
- - 72,000 3,712 75,712
- - (66.000) (384) (66.384)
1,057 83,049 87,162 24,361 195,629
- - 70,019 12,969 82,988
- - 24,572 1,573 26,145
- - (66,000) (384) (66,384)
. . 28,501 14,158 42,749
1,057 83,049 58,571 10,203 152,880
2018
1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
- - - 2,477 2,477
1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
- - 47,498 11,514 59,012
- - 22,521 1,455 23,976
. . 70,019 12,969 82,988
1,057 83,049 11,143 8,064 103,313
26,145,000 2018 23,976,000
CGUs
2019 2018
83,047 83,047
2 2
83,049 83,049

92/206




EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
CoU
RWSPL
25 oell
oell]
2019 2.0 5.1 2018 2.0
7.3 WACC
CcoU
(oell]
2019 2018
DCP( ) 62,239 58,252
2008 15  RWSPL
SLM
DCP
DCP RWSPL SLM DCP 80 20

DCP RWSPL  SLM DCP

93/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

Ogoooood
DCP
2019 2018
5,094 5,202
65,795 50,361
48 50
70,937 55,613
7,970 6,343
26,984 23,006
34,954 29,349
(3.341) (3,781)
(1,329) (1,299)
(4,670) (5,080)
(6,813) (7,067)
(16,609) -
(23,422) (7,067)
77,799 72,815
21,170 19,870
(

(3,565) (3,098)
209 161
(526) -
6,061 5,947
(1,077) (998)
4,984 4,949

DCP

DCP
2019 2018

72,815 67,866
4,984 4,949
77,799 72,815

DCP 62,239 58,252

94/206



12.

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oOoOooodn

2019 2018
144,522 242,038
- (43)
144,522 241,995
2,074,000 2,074,000
2,218,522 2,315,995

12

2019 2018
43 43
“3) -
- 43

2019 2018
RWSPL 100% 100%
SGX-ST 712 715

95/206



13.

2019

2018

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2019 2018

276 171
(231,382) (288,728)
(231,106) (288,557)
315 1,505 1,820
(287,156) 56,244 (230,912)
(1.716) (298) (2.014)
(288,872) 55,946 (232,926)
(288,557) 57,451 (231,106)
23,262 (22,947) 315
(304,962) 17,806 (287,156)
(1,608) (108) (1,716)
(306,570) 17,698 (288,872)
(283,308) (5,249) (288,557)

96/206



14.
@
(b)
@
©)
15.
27(d)
27(d)
655,210,000 2018
389,562,000 12

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

OooooOodd
2019 2018
221,131 217,299
13,551 3,007
- (1,475)
(1,431) 2,210
233,251 221,131
195,407 183,137
37,844 37,994
233,251 221,131
2019 2018 2019 2018
410,618 333,658 - -
- - 97,171 45,031
24,998 32,148 22,168 24,451
63 8 - -
- - 392,710 392,710
435,679 365,814 512,049 462,192
(312,389) (239,070) (99,119) (102,570)
123,290 126,744 412,930 359,622
4,072 5,818 1 2
10,092 11,230 180 72
137,454 143,792 413,111 359,696
- - 127,175 179,287
- - 262,500 262,500
- - 389,675 441,787
- - (1,134) (52,225)
- n 388,541 389,562
971 1,543 - _
971 1,543 388,541 389,562
655,210,000 388,541,000 2018

97/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018

5,664 4,482
18,471 18,633
24,560 25,691
48,695 48,806

71,152,000 2018

82,286,000 )
2019 2018 2019 2018

3,519,522 3,752,652 3,293,082 3,076,117
427,728 461,585 236,593 252,543
3,947,250 4,214,237 3,529,675 3,328,660

- 118,851 - -

2018 12 31
19(a)

98/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2019 2018 2019 2018
1,317 1,116 748 353
215,889 209,437 15,051 8,281
12,334 11,159 - -
4,601 4,664 - -
181,424 161,957 - -
66,886 60,918 205 168
15 32 - -
59 34 26 26
- - 139,147 193,246
6,859 5,447 - -
489,474 454,764 155,177 202,074
370 329 - -
447 1,341 - -
817 1,670 - -
2019 2018 2018 2019 2018
70,033 62,833 33,699 58,225 57,455
12 31 79,864 70,033 43,360 58,200 58,225
9,831 7,200 9,661 (25) 770
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19.
2019 2018 2019 2018
- 203,017 - -
b 3,991 3,358 56 -
3,901 206,375 56 .
a - 573,596 - -
b 9,868 12,800 3 -
c 246,786 245,799 246,786 245,799
256,654 832,195 246,789 245,799
260,645 1,038,570 246,845 245,799
@
2018 12 31
29
2019 4 25
17
®)
2018 12 31 SFRS(1) 1-17
21 2019 1 1
SFRS(1) 16 20
SFRS(1) 16 2.1
©
2017 10 24 20,000,000, 000
240,240,000

0.669
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20.

@

( ) ROU

2019 2019 2019 2019
12 31 12 31

749,868 763,401 - -

1,188 2,106 54 379
11,908 17,139 4 -
762,964 782,646 58 379

ROU 909,000 6,000

()

2019

ROU
13,533
1,162
4,269
18,964

1,615

1,324

() 7,741,000

®)

2019

16,875
11,231
4,860
1,416
774
44
35,200

21.
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2018 12 31

2018

4,900
14,415
1,492
20,807
(4,649)
16,158

19
3,358
11,352
1,448
16,158

2019 1 1 SFRS(1) 16
SFRS(1) 16 2.1

2019
12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349)

- - 7,240 5,808

12,094,027 5,527,705 (36,792) (29,541)

2018
12,094,027 5,527,705 (54,792) (44,432)
- - 10,760 9,083
12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35, 349)

@

2019 17
10

SGX-ST
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2009
2,043,716,094

0.80

2009

1,931,564,264

15.5

21 1,931,564,264 SGX-ST

2019 12 31 2009

UK
22.7

23.
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2009 23

2009 23

2009
2009

2009 10

37,832
30,675
217,817
70,000
172,722
412,271
169,648
284,475

1,395,440
149,811

1,545,251

2019

2018

2019

2018

a) 9,479
b 7,295

8,060
7,182

9,479
@

8,060
(83)

16,774

15,242

9,475

7,977

€))

PSS

2007 2017

PSS PSS

PSS
10

PSS
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PSS
PSS
PSS
PSS
208,853,893
PSS
420,433,143
PSS
2019 1.04
2018  1.13
2019 2018
7,405,000 10,930,000
12,905,500 7,595,000
(855, 350) (360,000)
(7.240,150) (10,760,000)
12,215,000 7,405,000
PSS
PSS
2019 2018
9,000,000 8,250,000
37,630,000 35,380,000
- 1,250,000
1,255,000 1,130,000
125,000 -
250,000 125,000
250,000 125,000
48,510,000 46,260,000

750,000 2,250,000 PSS
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2019 2018 2019 2018
490 476 57 5
(156) 58 - 12
(@) 39) - -
- ) - _
263 490 57 57
AAA
2019 2018
2018 2.0 @ 241,145 240,900
2018 1.5 ® 180,858 180,675
2018 12 31 2.0
2019 12 31
2019 12 31 1.5
2019 12 31
2.5
2020 12 31
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26.
@
2019 2018
4,485,538 61,682
RWSPL 2019
SDC
45
®
2018 12 31
2018 2018
2,550 330
2,195 55
4,745 385
2.1 2019 1 1  SFRS(I) 16
2019 12 31
ROU
©
2018
16,686
16,686
126
33,498
2.1 2019 1 1  SFRS(I) 16 2019 12
31 20

27.
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@
2019 2018 2019 2018

112,878 105,941 - -

597 2,320 545 752
78.309 126,094 77,516 125,679
191,784 234,355 78,061 126,431
(3,828) (5,203) (994) (550)
(11,902) (16,151) - -
(15,730) (21,354) (994) (550)

176,054 213,001 77,067 125,881
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OooooOodd
2018
2019 2018 2019 2018
1,761 2,130 771 1,259
(1,761) (2.,130) @) (1,259)
2018
2019 2018
1,954 1,831
(1,954) (1,831)
8,719,000 2019 4 25
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10 20 2018 19
2019 2018

239,070 159,416
110,021 79,671
(36,696) (14)

(6) (©)
312,389 239,070
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2019
115,137 66,033 55,618 173,830 410,618
(24,262) (58,757) (55,568) (173,802) (312,389)
90,875 7,276 50 98,229
2018
84,768 91,634 50,325 106,931 333,658
(10,557) (71,318) (50,264) (106,931) (239,070)
74,211 20,316 61 94,588
SFRS(1)
12
15
2019 2018
154,795 129,496
(991) 24,209
(51,797) -
(1,754) 1,090
100,253 154,795
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308,050 447 370 -
1,658 1,658 249,165 -
4,956 3,850 8,002 -

314,664 5,955 257,537 -

292,807 1,377 293 -

231,475 580,139 - -
1,654 1,654 250,187 -
4,900 3,669 10,746 1,492

530,836 586,839 261,226 1,492

185,177 - - -
1,658 1,658 249,165 -

57 2 1 -

156,892 1,660 249,166 -

202,074 - - -
1,654 1,654 250,187 -

203,728 1,654 250,187 -

111/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oOoOooodn
U)
2019 2018
260,645 1,038,570
8,057,589 7,781,345
8,318,234 8,819,915
3% 12%
2019 12 31
2018 12 31
@
)
)
)
2019
14 - 195,407 37,844 233,251
2018

14 - 183,137 37,994 221,131
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2019 2018
37,99 36,656
- (1,475)
373 1,991
(523) 822
37,844 37,994
Q)

2019 2018 2019 2018

4,074,612 4,465,650 4,331,147 4,077,846

233,251 221,131 - -

569,512 1,333,047 402,022 447,873
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28.

(

(

)

)
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2019 2018
1,260 1,107
1,402 1,392
2,662 2,499
(21,170) (19,870)
(540) (2,687)
(21,710) (22,557)

2019 2018
1,380 1,425
535 560
1,915 1,985
66 75
16,156 15,714
29 29
2,140 2,995
18,301 18,813
20,306 20,798
5,538 6,100
165 192
2,148 1,652
7,851 7,944




29.

SDC

SDC

EBITDA
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| *
2019
1,619,667 - - 1,619,667
832,389 - - 832,389
25,477 506 6,011 31,994
- - (3,710) (3,710)
2,477,533 506 2,301 2,480,340
EBITDA 1,232,284 (5,523) (37,128) 1,189,633
3,987 - - 3,987
(362,164) - (1,492) (363, 656)
(26,145) - - (26,145)
5,155,953 5,817 4,025,793 9,187,563
62,239 - - 62,239
276
9.250,078
169,408 - 3,388 172,796
75,712 - - 75,712
470,473 2,344 17,737 490,554
260,645
209,906
231,382

~ 1,192,487
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*
2018
1,678,987 - - 1,678,987
834,235 - - 834,235
23,453 767 5,967 30,187
- - (4,174) (4,174)
2,536,675 767 1,793 2,539,235
EBITDA 1,260,702 (6,852) (24,175) 1,229,675
3,959 - - 3,959
(290,426) - (1,115) (291,541)
(23,976) - - (23,976)
5,875,922 21,067 3,811,730 9,708,719
58,252 - - 58,252
171
9,767,142
89,220 - 599 89,819
2,477 - - 2,477
444,818 2,195 9,011 456,924
1,038,570
201,573
288,728
1,985,795
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30.

OooooOodd
EBITDA
2019 2018
EBITDA 1,189,633 1,229,675
(9.530) (9,206)
(8.871) (2,512)
(389,801) (315,517)
80,073 72,342
(20,495) (35,913)
3,987 3,959
- 118
1,910 292
846,906 943,238
2019 2018
2,479,993 2,538,799
347 436
2,480,340 2,539,235
4,878,732 5,016,141
4,420 4,013
4,883,152 5,020, 154
10

2020

12
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Group
2019 2018
MNote £'000 £'000
Revenus 4 2,480,340 2,538,235
Cost of sales” (1,451,319) (1,385,409)
Gross profit 1,029,021 1,153,826
Other operating income 14,417 6,201
Interest income 80,073 72,342
Administrative expanses [193,806) [183,307)
Selling and distribution expanses (61,682) (62, 751)
Other operating expenses {4,609) {11.118)
Operating profit BE3 414 avs, 192
Finance costs 5 {20,495) (35.913)
Share of results of joint vantura 3,987 3,959
Profit before taxation g 846,906 943,238
Taxation 7 [158,302) {187,845)
Met profit for the financial year 688,604 755,383
Net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company GBS 604 756,303
Other comprehensive income/(loss), may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Faoreign currency exchange differences 113 (4]
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the financial year, net of tax 112 (F4)
Total comprehensive income for the financial year G688 T17 755,319
Total comprehensive income attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company 688 T17 755,319
Group
2019 2018
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company
Basic earnings per share (Cents) 8 5.71 6.27
Diluted sarnings per share (Cents) 8 371 .27

A Incluedead in cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2019 is nst impairmant on frads receivables [Nate 6) amounting 1o
S101,128,000 (2018; 558,070,000,

The notes on pages 57 10 112 form an integral part of these financial stataments.,

48 | GENTING SINGAPORE ARIRILIAL REFORT 2019
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Mote £'000 5000 S'000 £'000
MNoen-current assets
Property, plant and equipment g 4,667,062 4,857,045 143 130
Intangible assets 10 152,880 103,513 - -
Interests in joint venture 11 62,239 58,252 - -
Interests in subsidiaries 12 - - 2,218,522 2,315,995
Deferred tax assets 13 276 171 - -
Financial assats at fair value through
profit or loss 14 233,251 221131 - -
Trade and other recalvables 15 971 1,643 388,541 389,562

5,116,679 5,241,456 2,607,206 2,706,687

Current assats

Imvantories 16 48,695 43,806 - -
Trade and othar recaivables 15 137 454 143,792 413,111 352 696
Resftricted cash 1 - 118,651 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 17 3,947,250 4,214,237 3,529,675 3,328,660

4,133,399 4,525,686 3,942,786 3,688,356

Less: Gurrent liabilities

Trade and other payables i3 489,474 454,764 155,177 202,074
Borrowings 19 3,991 206,375 56 -
Income tax liabilities 209,906 201,573 15,471 38,4458
703,371 BE2,712 170,704 240,522
Met eurrent assets 3,430,028 3662074 3,772,082 3,447,834
Total assets less current liabilities 8,546,707 5,904,430 6,379,288 6,153,521
Equity
Share capital 22 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5.627.705
Treasury shares 22 {29,541} (35,344) (29,541) (35,348
Mher reserves 23 16,774 15,242 9,475 7977
FRetained earmings 2,542 651 2,273,747 624,803 407 332
Attributable to ordinary shareholders 8,057,589 7,781,345 6,132,442 5,907,665
Mon-controlling interests 2 2 - -
Total equity 8,057,591 7781347 6,132,442 5,907 B85

MNon-current liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities 13 231,382 288,728 - -
Borrowings i 256,654 B32,195 246,789 245,739
Provisicn for retirement gratuities 24 263 490 57 57
Mher payables 18 817 1,670 - —

489,116 1,123,083 246,846 245,506
Total equity and non-current liabilities 8,546,707 5,204,430 6,379,288 6,153,521

The notes on pages 57 10 112 form an integral part of these financial stataments.,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group
2019 2018
Note $'000 £'000

Met cash inflow from operating activities A 1,085,880 1,146,414
Investing activities
Property, plant and equipment.

= Proceads from disposals 834 3,372

- Purchases (171,534) (119,625
Agditions of intangible assets (75,712) (2,477}
Proceeds from disposal of asset classified as held for sale - 11,904
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss - 1,475
Met cash outflow from investing activities (246,412) (105,351)
Financing activities
Interest paid (12,529) (26,662)
Dividends paid (422,003) (421,675
Repaymeant of bank barrowings (785,000) (210,000)
Repayment of laase liabilities (4,802) (3.,574)
Restricted cash (deposit releasadpledged) as security for

loan repayments and interest) 118,851 (1,575)
Met cash outflow from financing activities {1,105,483) (B63,586)
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (266,015) 37T ATT
Beginning of financial year 4,214,237 3,833,904
et (foutflow)infiow [266,015) AT ATT
Effects of exchange rate changes (972} 2,856
End of financial year 17 3,947,250 4,214 237

The notes on pages 57 1o 112 form an integral part of these financial statameants,
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

Mote A - Met cash inflow from operating activities

Profit before taxation for the financial year
Adgjustments for:
Property, plant and eguipment:
- Depreciation
- Met gain on disposals
— Writtan off
= Impairment
Amortization of:
= Intangible assets
- Borrowing costs
Met impairment on trade receivables
Fair value gain on financial assats at fair value through profit or loss
Gain on disposal of asset classified as held for sale
Share-based paymeant
Imvantory write-down
Finance chargas
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/gain)
Interest income
Share of results of joint venture
(Write-back)/provision of retirement gratuitias

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Changes in working capital:
Increase in inventorias

Increase in rade and other receivables
Incraasze in rade and other payables

Cash generated from operating activities
Interest received

Mat taxation paid

Ratiremeant aratuitiss paid

Met cash inflow from operating activities

Group

2019 2018

£'000 S'000
846,906 943,238
363,656 291,541
[862) [2.878)
1,281 2,620
294 3,208
26,145 23,976
8,753 8,857
101,128 58,070
{13,551) (3,007}
- (118)
9,530 9,206
792 2,434
11,742 27 056
2,425 (4,645)
(80,073 (72,342)
(3,987) (3.254)
{156) 58
427,117 330,780
1,274,023 1,283,027
(682) (2,640
(100,987) (57,653
34,885 £1,866
(66,774) [8,427)
1,207,249 1,274,600
86,116 E31T72
(207,414) (181,319)
(71) {39}
1,085,880 1,146,414

The notes on pages 57 to 112 form an integral part of these financial statemeants.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Bank Lease

borrowings liabilities Bonds Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2019
Beginning of financial year TT6,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
Principal payments {785,000} {4,802) - (789,802)
Mon-cash changes
- Additions - 4,422 - 4,422
- Disposals - {(1,772) - (1,772}
- Forsign exchange movement - {147 621 474
- Amnortization of borrowing costs 8,387 - 366 8,753
End of financial year - 13,859 246,786 260,645
2018
Beginning of financial year a78.103 2,645 236,252 1,216,000
Frincipal payments {210,000) [3.574) - (213,574)
Mon-cash changes
- Additions - 16,938 - 16,936
= Foreign exchange movemeant - 149 10,200 10,349
- Amaortisation of borrowing costs 8,510 = 347 8,857
End of financial year 776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570

The notes on pages 97 to 112 form an integral part of these financial statemeants.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

GEMERAL

Genting Singapore Limited is listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
(“SGH-2T").

The address of the Company's ragistered office is 10 Sentosa Gateway, Resorts World Sentosa,
Singapore 098270,

The Company's principal activity is that of an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's subzidiaries include the developmant and operation of integrated resort, cperation of casinos,
provision of sales and marketing support services to leisure and hospitality related businesses and investments.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICGIES
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
{International) {“SFAS{l)s") under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting

policies balow.,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS{l)s requires managament to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group®s accounting policies. It alzo requiras the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumptions, The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and astimatos are significant to the financial statemants are
disclosed in Nate 3,

Intarpretations and amendments to published standards effactive in 2019

On 1 January 2019, the Group and the Company have adopted the new SFRS()s that are effective for
financial year baginning cn or after 1 January 2019.

The Group and the Company’s assessment of the impact of SFRS(I 16 Leases is set out below.
SFRS(l) 16 Leases
[a) When the Group and the Company is the lessee

On adoption of SFRS(} 16, the Group and the Company recognisad right-of-use ("ROU") assats
and lease liabiliies in relation o lsasas which had been classified as "operating leases™ under
SFRS() 1-17 Leases. Thase lsase liablities ware measured at the prasent value of the remaining
lease payments, discountad using the lessse's incrameantal borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019,
ROL! aszets were measured at an amount equal (o lease liability, adjusted for any lease paymeants
made bafore the date of adoption and lease incentive recaived.

The weighted average lessee’s incremantal borrowing rate applied to the lease lizbilitiss on
1 January 2012 was 3%.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation [Continued)
Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 (Continued)
SFRS(l) 16 Leases (Continued)
[a) When the Group and the Company is the lessee (Continued)

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the Group recognised the carrying amount of
the lease assels and leassa liabilities immediately bafore transition as the carrying amount of the
ROU assets and the lease liabilities at the date of adoption.

The Group and the Company have applied tha standard using the simplified transition approach
and have not restated comparative amounts for the previous reporting pediod.

Cninitial application of SFRSI) 16, the Group and the Company have slecied to apply the following
practical expedients:

] Mo reassassment on whether contracts contain leases if such contracts were enterad into
bafore 1 January 2019; and

{iiy O a lease-by-lsase basis, the Group and the Company have:

. used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reascnably similar
characteristics;

* accountad for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months
as at 1 January 2019 as short-term leases.

The recanciiation between opearating lease commitmeants disclosed as at 31 December 2018 and
leasea liabilities recognized as at 1 January 2019 ig as follows:

Group Company

£'000 £'000

Cperating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 3018 4,745 385
Less: Discounting effect using the lessee’s incremental borrowing

rate at the date of initial application (421) (6]
Less: Short-term leasas recognised on a straight-line

basis as expanse (811} =
Add; Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2015 16,158 -
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 19,671 379
OF which are:

Current leasa llabllities 5164 324

MNeon-current lease liabilities 14,510 58

19,671 3ra
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation {Continued)
Intarpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 (Continued)
SFRS(l) 16 Leases (Continued)
(b} When the Group is the lessor
The accounting for lessors has not changed significantly.

There are no other standards that are not vet effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group and the Company in the current or foresseabls future reporting pariods,

22 Group acecounting
{a)  Subsidiaries
(1 Consalidation

Subsidiaries are entities (ncluding spacial purpose entities) over which the Group has
contrel. The Group contrels an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returms from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
and are deconsolidated from the date that contral ceases. All intercampany ransactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Group entities are eliminated.
Unreatizad lossas are alsoc eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment indicator of the transferred asset. Where necessary, accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Mon-controfling interests are that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of
a subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indirectly by the
equity holders of the Company. They are shown separately in the consolidated statement
of comprahensive income, statemant of changes in equity and the statement of financial
position, Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controding interests based on
their respactive interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)
2.2  Group accounting (Continued)
{a) Subsidiaries (Continued)
i Acquisitions

The acquisition method of accounting is used 1o account for business combinations by
the Group. Under this method, the cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary or business s
measurad as the fair value of the aszets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
imcurred or assumad at the date of acquisition, Tha cost of acqguisition also inciudes the
fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages. previously held equity interest in the
acquires is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss.

Acquisition-related cosls are expensad as incurred.

ldentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingant liabilities assumed in a business
cambination are maasurad initlally at their fair valeas at the acquisition data.

On an acquisition-by-acquigition basis, tha Group recognises any non-controlling interast in
the acquires at the date of acqguisition ither at fair value or at tha non-controliing interest’s
proportionate share of the acquires’s idantifiable net assats.

The excess of the cost of acquisition owver the fair value of tha Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (see accounting policy note on
intangible assats). If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquirad, the difference is recognisad directly in profit or loss,

i Disposals

When a change in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assats and liabilitiss of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
deracognised. The profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the diference betwean (i) the
aggragate of the falr value of the consideration recaived and the fair valua of any ratainad
interest; and () the previous carmying amount of tha assats (including goodwill), and tha
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-confrolling interests. Amounts pravicusly recognisad
in ofher comprehensiva mcome in respact of that entity are also reclassified to profit or loss
or tranzfarred to retained earméngs if required by a specific standard.

Any retained equity interast in the antity iz remeasured at fair value. The difference bebweean
the carrying amount of the retained interast at the date when contral is lost and its fair
value is recognisad in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2  Group accounting [Continued)
(b}  Joint venture

The Group's intarests in joint venture iz accounted for in the consolidated financial statemeants
using the equity method of accounting. Equity accounting invelves recognising the Group's share
of the post-acquisition resulls of joint venture in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition
movaments within reserve is recognisaed in other comprehensive income, These post-asquisition
movamants and distnbutions arg adpusted against the carrying amount of the investment,

The Group recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale of assats by the Group to the joint
venture that is attributable to the othar venturer. The Group does not recaognisa its share of profits
or loszas from joint veniure that results from the purchase of assets by the Group from the joint
ventura, until it resalis the assets to an independent party. However, if a loss on the fransaction
provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assets or an impairment
loss, the loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where necessary, in appiyving the equity method, adjustments have been made to the financial
statements of joint vanture to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

(e} Transactions with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
over the subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity cwners of the Company. Any
difference betwesen the change in the carrying amounts of the nen-controlling interest and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received i5 recognised within equily attributable to the equity
holdars of the Comparry,

2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenus comprisas the fair value of the consideration raceived or receivabls for the sale of goods and
sarvices in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenus attributable to the award of benefits
measured at fair value is deferred until they are utiisad. Revenue is shown as nat of goods and serices
tax, and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Gaming ravenus reprasants nat house takings, which is the aggregate of wins and losses arising from
gaming play, and is reported after deduction of goods and zemnvices tax, commigsions, discounts and
loyalty points awardad to customers. Complimentary goods or services provided by the Group is allocated
to the appropriate revenue type based on the goods and services provided, at the standalone selling
price of sach good and service.

Hotal room revenue is recognisad at the time of room cccupancy,

Altraction revenue is recognised when tickels are used, Revenue from annual passes is amortised over
the period of their validity,

Food and beverage and retail sales are recognised whean goods are delivered or services are rendared
to the customers,

Rental income fram retail outlets, net of any incentives given to the lesses, is recognised on a
straight-fing basis over the period of the respactive lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.4  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
2.5  Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is
subsaguently carfed at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including
barrowing costs and realised gains or losses on gualifying cash flow hadges incurred specifically for the
construction or development of the asset, Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the depreciable amounts of proparty, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Freahold properties and improvernants 25 years
Leasehold land, properties and improvemants 30-99 years
Machinery, computer eguipment, fixtures, fitings and motor vehicles 2-5 years
Public attractions, thame park aquipment, mechanical and electrical systam 10-35 yaars
Exhitit animals 3-15 years

Freshold land is stated at cost and is not depraciated. Leasshold land is depreciated over the leasa
pariod of 60 to 99 years. Leasehold properties and improvements are depraciated over 30 to 60 years.

The depreciation of leasehold land is capitalised during the pericd of construction as part of
construction-in-progress in property, plant and equipment wuntil the construction is completad.,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recogrised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probabla that future economic benefits associated with the itam will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measurad reliably. Al other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss dwing the financial year that they are incurrad.

Construction-in-progress consists of aszets and property under construction. Assats include acquired
computer hardware, computer software licence and implementation cost incurred in bringing the computer
systam to use.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Costs include borrowing costs and
olher directly related expenditure incurred during the period of construction and up 1o the complation
of the construction. Censtruction-in-progress relating to assets and property under construction is
reclassified to the respective categories of property, plant and equipment vpon completion of the project.

For major construction-in-progress, the cost is supported by qualified quantity surveyors' eertitication
of work dona.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment {Continued)

The assats’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if apprapriate, at each reporting
date.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the assel is assessed and if it
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assets is written down
immediately o its recoverable amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assets).

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceads with carrying amount and ara
included in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets
[a) Goodwill on acguisition

Goodwil on acquisition rapresents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair valua of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidianes is included in intangible assats,

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries i tested at least annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment Iossas on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an antity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units (*CGUS™ for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arese, identified according to operating ssgment,

(B} Trademarks and tradenames

Trademarks and fradenames are initially recognised at cost and are subsaquently carried at cost
Iess any accumulated impairment losses, Trademarks and tradenames have an indefinite useful
life as it is maintained through continuous marketing and upgrading. Trademarks and tradenames
are tested annually for impairment, Where an indication of impairment exists, the canrying amaount
of trademarks and tradenames are assessed and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assets),

[} Licences

Casino and thame park licences are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amaortisation and accumulated impairment losses, Such cost is amortisaed using
the straight-line method over 3 to 35 years, which i3 the shorter of its economic useful life and
periods of contractual right. The amortisation period and amortisation method are reviewed at
each reporting date. The effects of any revision are recognized in profit or loss when changes
arise. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss unless the amaunt can be capitalised as part of
construction-in-progress. Where an indication of impairment exists, the camying amount of licence
is assessad and written down immediately to its recoverable amount,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)
(d} Computer software
Computer software that does not form an integral part of other related hardware is treated as an

intangible asset. Costs that are directly associated with davelopment and acquisition of computer
software programmes by the Group are capitalisad as intangible assats whan the following criteria

ara medt:

. it is technically feasible to complete the software product 20 that it will ba available for use;

- managament intends to complete the software product and use or sall it;

. there is an ability to use or sall the software product;

. it can be demonsirated how the software product will generate probable future economic
benefits;

L adeqguate techrical, financial and other resources 1o complata the davelopmant and 1o use
or sall the softwara product are available: and

. the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measurad.

Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognisad as an expanse when incurred,

Expenditure that enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyvond
their original specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost
of the software.

Computer software are subsequantly carried at cost less accumdlated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to profit or loss using the straight-line
method over thair estimated usaful life of 10 years.,

2.7  Investments in subsidiaries

Imvestments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses in the Company's
statement of financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the differences between
disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the investmants are recognigad in profit or [oss, Whare
an indication of impairment exists, the camying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immeadiately to its recoverable amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of nen-financial assats).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.8  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life. including goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are
tested at least annually for impairment, Assets thal are subject to amortization and depreciation, and
investments in subsidiaries and joint venture are reviewead for impairment whenaver events or changes in
cireumstances indicate that tha carrying amount may not Be recovarable, An impairment loss i3 recogrised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceads its recoverable amount, The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sall and value in uge. For the purpocses of
assassing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units or CGUs). Non-financial assets othear than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairmant at each reporting date.

Impairment is charged to profit or loss, Impairment is reversed only (o the extent that the reversal does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have beean determined (net of any accumuiated amortisation
or depraciation) had no impairment been recognised in prior years for the same asset. The reversal is
racognisad in profit or loss, Impairment on goodwill is not reversed once recognizsed,

2.9 Financlal assets
[a) Classification and measuramant

The Group classifies its financial assats in the following categones: amortised cozt and fair value
through profit or Inss. The classification depends on the Group's business modal for managing the
fimancial aszats as wall as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset. Financial
assets with embedded derivatives are considerad in their entirety when determining whether their
caszh flows are 2olely payment of principal and interest. The Group reclassifies dabt instrumeants
when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognitien and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assels are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have besn fransferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a debt Instrument, the difference batween the carrying amount and the sale
procesds is recognised in profit or loss, Any amount praviously recognisad in other comprabensive
income ralating to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.

[} Initial recognition

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial azseat at itz fair valua plus, in the casa of a
financial assat not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributabls
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Tranzaction costs of financial assats carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expansed in profit or loss,

GENTING SINGAPORE AnE-AL REFORT 2019 | 65

136/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
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2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
{d) Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
guoted and ungquated dabt sacurilies.

Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or
Ioss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognisad in profit or loss when the assel is derecognisaed or impaired.
Interast income from these financial assels is included in interest income using the effactive
interest rate method,

Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet the criteria for
classification as amortised cost or fakr value through other comprehansive income are classified as
fimancial assats at fair value through profit or loss. Movemeant in fair values and interest income is
recognized in profit or loss in the period In which it arizes and presented in other gains and lossas.

(&) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expacted credit lossas associated with its
debt financial assats carriad at amortised cost. The impairment meathodology applied depands on
the level of credit risk, wihich is set out in Mote 27(d). For trade receivables, the Group measures
the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifelime expected credit losses.

2,10  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable valus, Cost is determinad using the weighted
average method. Cost of inventorias comprises all cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variabla salling expenses.

211 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at thelr fair value when thera is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with &l the attached conditions.

Approved government grants relating to qualitying expandifure are deferrad and recognised in profit or
loss over the period neceszary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate,
unless they are directly attributabla o the construction of an item of property, plant and equipment, in
which case, thay are =at off against the asseat.

Government grants raelating to expenszes are presented as a deduction of the related expense.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances (net of bank ocwerdrafts), deposits held at call
with banks and othar short-term highly liquid investmeants with cnginal matunties of 12 months or lass,

2,13 Trade and other payables

Trade and othar payables are racognizad initially at fair value and subsaguently measurad at amortisad
cost using the effective interest mathod.

2.14 Employvee benefits
[a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term empioyes benefits include wages, salaries, bonus and paid annual leave. These benefits
are recogrised as an expeansa In profit or loss when Incwred and are measurad on an undiscountad
basis, unless thay can be capitalised as part of the cost of a sslf-constructed asset.

(b} Defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined confribution plans for some of its employaes under which the
Group pays fixed contributions into the employeas provident funds in certain countries in which
it operates on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis and will have no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if those funds do not hold sufficient assats to pay all
emplovess the benefits relating to services provided in the current and prior pericds. The Group's
contributicns 1o such plans are recognised in profit or loss as amployes benefits expensa whan
they are due, unless they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-constructed asset,

(e} Long-term employee benefits

The Group provides refirement gratuities under a retirement gratuity scheme that was established
in 1991 by the Board of Directors of the ultimate holding corporation for certain executives and
executive directors of the Company and certain subsidiaries. The level of retirement gratuities
payabla is in relation to the past services rendered. The gratuity s calculated basad on employvess”
basic salary for sach completed year of sarvica, Such benafits vest on the employees whean they
reach ratirament age.

The presant value of the retiremeant gratuities is determined by discounting the amount payabla by
refarence to market yialds at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds or government
bond which have terms to matwity approximating the terms of the related liability. Employes
turnover is also fastorad in ardiving at the level of provision for retirement gratuities. The differances
arizging from the application of such discounting as wedl as any past service costs and the effects of
any curtaiments or setflements, if ary, are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Such retirement
gratuities payable are classified as current liakilities where it is probable that a payment will be
made within the next 12 months.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
{d) Share-based compensation benefits

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, where shares are issued by
the Company to aligible axecutives and directors of the Group. Tha valus of the employese sarvices
received in exchange for the grant of the shares is recognised as an expense in profit or loss with
a corazponding entry to resarves ovar the vesting period. The total amount 1o be axpensad over
the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the shares granted at the grant
date and the number of shares vested by vesting date, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in the astimates of the number of
sharas thal are expected (o become vestad.

The fair value of sarvices recaived from the emplovess of the Company and its subsidiaries
in exchange for the grant of the shares are essentially services rendered in the past, are
charged cut to profit or loss immediately, unless they can be capitalisad as part of the cost of a
self-constructed asset. Before the end of the vesting period, at each reporting dats, the Company
will revise its estimates of the number of shares that are expected to be vested at the vesting date
and it recognises the impact of this revision in profit or loss with a corrésponding adjustmeant to
equity. After the vesting date, no adjiustment to profit or loss is made. For parformance shares that
are expected to be grantad, dus to services received befors grant date, the total amount to be
recoanised over the vesting pericd is datermined by refarence to the fair value of the parformancs
sharas at the end of the reparting period, until the date of grant has been established. Upon
vasting of shares, reserves relating to the vested shares will be transferred to retained earnings.

Where the terms of a share-based compensation plan are modified. the expense that has yet to
be recognised for the award, is recognised over the remaining vesting period as if the terms had
not bean modified. Additional expensa is recognised for any increase in the total fair valus of the
share dus 1@ the modification, as measured at the date of the modification,

2,15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan the Group bas a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
a past event. It iz more likely than not that an ocutflow of resources embodyving economic banefits will
ba required to satile the obligation, and the amount has bean raliably estimatad, Provisions are not
racognizsad for future oparating lossas,

Prasant obligations arising under cnerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeating the obligations under the contract excead the economic benefits received under it.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2,16 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
seftlement of the Eability for at lzast 12 months after the reporting date, in which cass they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsagquently stated at
amortised cost, Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs including commitment fees on credit facilities, amortisation of transaction cosis
and interest expenses are recognised in profit or loss unless they are directly attributable to the
construction-in-progress, in which case, they are capitalized as part of the cost of the self-constructed
asaat during the construction period.

217 Leases
The accounting for leases before 1 January 2019 are as follows:
[a) When the Group is the lessee - Operating leases

Leases whare a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessors are classified as operating leases, Payments made under aperating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessors) are charged to profit or loss on a siraight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

(b} When the Group is the lessee - Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalisad at the lease's
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, Lease payments are allocated batwesn liability and finance chargas.
The interest element of the finance casts is charged o profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant paniodic rate of intarest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period, The property, plant and equipment acquired under a finance lease is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated usaeful life of the asset and the lease term,

(e} When the Group is the lessor - Operating leases

Leaszes where the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownarship are classified as
oparating lsases. Rental income from operating leases (nat of any incentives given to the lassees)
is recognisad in profit or (985 on a straight-ling basis over the laass term,

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negotiating and arranging opearating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the lsasad assels and recognisad as an expeanss in profit or loss over
the lease term on the same basis as the lsase income.

Lease incantives are recognisad as other receivables where such incentives are provided by the
Group and recognised net of lease income in profit or loss over the lsass term on the same basis
as the lease income, Contingant rents are recognised as income in profit or loss when samead,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
247 Leases (Continued)
The accounting for leasas aftar 1 January 2019 are as follows:
(a) When the Group is the lessee

At the inception of the contract, the Group asseszes if tha contract contains a lease. A contract
contains a lease it the confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assst for a
period of time in exchange for consideration. Reaszassmant is only required wihan the terms and
conditions of the contrast are changed,

. ROU assets

The Group recognises a ROU asset and lsase lability at the date which tha underlying
asset is availlable for use. ROU assets are measured at cost which comprises the initial
measuramant of lease liabiliies adjusted for any lease payments made at or belora the
commencement date and leaze incentive received. Any initlal direct costs that would not
have bean incurred if the lease had not been oblained are addad to the canrying amaount
of the ROU assats.

These ROU assets are subsaquently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the and of the useful life of the ROU assat or the
and of the leaze term.

ROU assets are prasented within “Property, plant and equipment”.

. Lease liabilities
The initial measurement of lease liability iz measured at the presant value of the lease
paymeants discounted using the mphicit rate n the leass, if the rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group shall use its incremental

borrowing rate.

Leasze payments includes fixed payment (including in-substance fixed payments), l8ss any
lease incentives receivablas.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method and shall
be remeasured when:

- Thare i a change in future leage payments arising from changes in the leass's
implicit rate;

- There is a change in the Group's assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
aplion; or

- There are maodifications in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not
part of the original term.

7O | GENTING SINGAPORE ARMLAL BEFORT 2019

141/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
247 Leases (Continued)
[a) When the Group iz the lessee (Continued)
. Leasea liabilities (Continuad)

Leaze liability is remeasurad with a corrasponding adjustmant to the ROU asszet, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the ROU asset has been reduced 1o 2ero,

. Short-term and low value leases

Lease payments relating to short-term leases that have leasa terms of 12 months or less
and leases of low value leases, except for subleasae arrangemants, are expensad to profit
or loss on a straight-line Dasis over the lease tarm,

(b}  When the Group is the lessor

The accounting policy applicable to the Group as a lessor undar SFRS(N) 16 is the same as tha
comparative period.

2,18 Income tax

The tax expense for the pericd comprizes currant and deferred tax. Tax is recognisad in profit or loss,
excent to the extent that it arises from a transaction or event which is recognisad, in the same or different
pariod, in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Tax relating to transactions or events
recognised in other comprehensive income or diractly in equity is also recognisad in other comprehensive
income or dirgctly in equity respectively.

(a) Current tax

Cuwrrent tax is calculated according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company and
itz subsidiaries operate and includes all taxes based upon the taxable income and I8 measured
using the tax rates and tax laws which are applicable at the raporting date.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised for all lemporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and thair carrying amounts in the financial statements. Howaver, if the defarred
tax arizes from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, it is not accounted for,

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expectad to apply whan the relatad defarred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is setlled; and based on the tax consequences that
will follow fram the manner in which the Group expects, at the same reporting date, to recover ar
settle the carrying amount of its assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.18 Income tax (Continuad)
(b) Deferred tax (Gontinued)

Deferrad tax assels are recognised o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint
venture, excapt where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the lemporary diferenca will not reverse in the foresesable future,

2,19 Share capital and treasury shares

Crdinary shares are clagsified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets to another person or enfity or 1o exchange financial assats or liabiities with another person
or antity that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer.

Incremental costs diractly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceads. The proceads received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited 1o share capital,

When shares recognised as equily are acquired, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
transachion costs, are recordad in the treasury shares account,

When the Company purchasss its own ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), they are presentad as a
daduction from total equity until thay are cancelled, sold or reissued.

When treasury shares ars subsaqueantly sold or reissued pursuant to equity compensation plans, the cost
of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury shares account and the realised gain or loss on sale or
raissus, nat of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs, s recognisaed in equity.

2.20 Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

lterns includad in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic emvironmant in which the entity operatas (“the functional
currency”). Tha conaolidated financial statements are presanted in the functional currency of tha
Company which is Singapore Dollars ("87).

(b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each entity in the Group are franslated into the funclicnal currency
using the exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the transactons. Forelan exchange gains and
lossas resulting from the sattlement of such transactions and from the translation at the closing
ratas at the reporting date of monatary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recogrisad in profit or loss.

Man-monstary items measured at fair values in forgign currencies are translated using the exchangs
rates at the date when the fair values are determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.20 Foraign currency translation (Continued)
(e} Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyparinflationary economy) that have a functicnal currancy differant from the presantation currency
are franslated into the presentation currency as follows:

i assats and liabilities are transiated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

{li} income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions),
and

(i} all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumdlated in the currency translation reserve, These currancy translation differences are
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the entity giving rise to such
resarve,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments ariging on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assetls and liabilities of the foreign operations and translatad at the clesing rate at the reporting
date.

2,21 Dividend distribution

Dividand distribution to the Company’s sharaholders I2 recogrised as a liability in the financial statements.
in the period in which the dividends are approved for payment.

2,22 Segment reporting

Opearating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intermnal reporting provided to the chief
oparating dacision-maker. Tha chief oparating decision-maker, wha is responsible for allocating resowrces,
making strategic decisions and assessing performance of the operating sagments has been identified as
the Executive Chairman, and President and Chial Operating Officer of the Group and of the Company,

223 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group does not recognise a contingant liability but discloses its existence in the financial statameants.,
A contingant lkability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose axistance will be confirmed
by uncertain future events beyond the control or & prasent obligation that is not recognised because it
iz not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to sattle the obligation. When a change in
tha probability of an outflow of econamic resources cocurs S0 that outfliow is probabile, it will then bea
recognisad as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future events beyond the contral of the Group. The Group does not recognize contingent
assels bul disclosas their existance where an inflow of economic benefits is probakle, but not virtually
certain. When an inflow of economic resources iz virtually certain, the asset is recognizsed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will
not nacessanly equal the related actual results,

{a) Taxation

The Group is subjected to income taxas in numearous jurizdictions in which the Group oparates, mainly in
Singapore. Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes that includes
the estimate of the amount of capital alowancas for items within the leasehold improvements and fixturas
and fitlings asset categories and the deductibility of certain expenses.

Wihare the final tax cutcome of tax ligbilities is diferent from the amounts that weare initially recordad, such
differences will impact the income tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities (Notes 7 and 13),
where applicabie, in the period in which such determination is made,

=] Impairment of trade receivables
As at 31 December 2019, the Group's trade receivables amounted 1o $410,618,000, magority of which are
ralated to casing dabtors, Trade recaivables are grouped based on shared cradit risk charactenstics and
days past dus, with expected loss rates assessed based on the Group's historical credit loss exparience.
The Group further evaluates the expectad credit loss on customers on a case-by-case basis, which will
be azsessed based on indicators such as changes in financial capability of the debtor, and default or

significant delay in paymeants.

The Group's credit risk expasure for trade receivables is set out in Note 27(d).

4, REVEMNUE
Group
2019 2018
£'000 5'000
Gaming 1,619,667 1,678,987
Mon-gaming
- Hotal rooms 225,348 225,094
- Attractions 467,411 448,145
= Other non-gaming 138,630 162,996
832,389 834,235
Rental income 27,495 24,939
Others 789 1,074

2,480,340 2,539,235
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FINANCE COSTS

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Interest expense:
- Bank berrowings 7.080 21,862
= Bonds 1,674 1.637
= Lease liabilities 1,615 1,157
Amartisation of borrowing costs 8,753 8,857
Others 1,373 2,400
20,495 35,913
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Includad in the profit bafora taxation are the following expenses/(income) by nature:
Group
2019 2018
$'000 £'000
Directors' remunaration:
- Feas and maating allowancas 1,446 1,500
= Other emoiluments 18,860 19,298
Employes benefits (axcluding directors” ramunaration)":
- Salaries and related cosls 448,103 466,672
- Employer's contribution to defined contribution plan 42,872 46,354
= {Write-backlprovision of retirement gratuities (156) 58
- Share-based paymant 6,855 £ 651
Auditors” remunsration:
= PricewaterhcuseCoopers Singapore 1,735 1,806
- Other auditors &1 61
Mon-audit fees paid/payable to auditors 762 842
Duties and taxes™ 282,640 297,846
Depraciation of property, plant and equipment 363,656 281,541
Amartisation of intangible assetls 26,145 23.978
Met impairment on trade receivables 101,128 58,070
Inventory write-down 792 2,434
Includad in other aperating Income:
- Gain on disposal of assst classified as hald for sale - {118)
- Gain on disgposal of property, plant and equipment (862) (2,978}
= Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (13,551) (3,097}
Includad in other operating expenses:
- Write-off of property, plant and equipment 1,281 2,522
= Impairment of property, plant and eguipment 294 3,208
- Mat foreign exchange loss 3,034 5,388
Fantal expenses on operating leases 1,324 4,844
Advertising and promotion 50,641 47,582
itilities 49,281 46,293
Legal, professional and managament fees 25,380 17,668

The Group recaived government grants of 33,402,000 (2018: 54.9368,000) that were et off against the gqualiying
amployee compansation.
Includes property tax and casino lax that is levied on the casing’s gross gaming revanua.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

[ TAXATION

Group
2019 2018
£'000 5'000
Taxation for current financial year:
= Currant tax 200,234 184,101
= Deferred tax (31,887) 2,831
168,347 186,932
Under/{over) provision in prier financial years:
- Currant tax 15,519 (1,505
= Deferred tax (25,564) 2,418
{10,045) 813
Total tax expense 158,302 187,845
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 846,906 943 238
Share of results of joint venture, net of tax {3,987) (3,958
Profit before taxation and share of results of joint venture 842,919 939,279
Tax calculated at tax rate of 17% 143,206 159,677
Tax effects of:
- Expensas not deductible for tax purposes 26,671 29,934
= {Over)/under provision in prior financial years (10,045) 413
- Differant tax rates in other countries (6,555) (6,443
- Tax incentives [199) [B8:3)
- Income not subject to tax (1,050) (1,004)
= Daferred tax assats not recognized 2,217 1,297
- Withholding tax 3,967 4,064
Total tax expense 158,302 187,845
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted eamings per ordinary share have been calculated based on Group's net profit attributable
to crdinary sharaholders divided by the wealghted average number of ordinary shares cutstanding.

Group
2019 2018
£'000 5000
Met profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 688,604 755,393
Group
2019 2018
000 000
Weighted average number of ordinary sharas of the Company 12,056,144 12,044 309
Adjustrment for:

- Share-based compensation plans 11,839 11,704
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,067,983 12,056,013
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary sharaholders of the Company is as follows:

Group
2019 2018
Basic earnings per share (cents) 571 B.27
Diluted earnings par shara (cents) 571 B.27
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0. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)

Computer
equipment,
Leasehold fixtures and Construction-
property fittings in-progress Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2019
Cost
Beginning of financial year - 388 16 404
Adoption of SFRS{I) 16 (Nota 2.1) ave - - ara
Additions - 34 - 34
Raclassification - 16 {16) -
End of financial year 379 438 - 817
Accumulated depreciation
Beaginning of financial year - 274 - 274
Depreciation 324 L] - 400
End of financial year 324 350 - 674
Net book value
End of financial year 55 B8 - 143
2018
Cost
Baginning of financial year - 388 - 359
Additions - 28 16 45
End of financial year - 388 16 404
Accumulated depreciation
Baginning of financial year - 207 - 207
Drepreciation - & - G
End of financial year - 274 - 274
Net book value
End of financial year - 114 16 130

Az at 31 Decamber 2018, the nat book value of leasehold land, certain machinery and motor vahicles hald undear
finance leases for the Group wara S763,401,000 and $15,732,000 respactively. Included in additions for 2018
was machinary acquired under finance leases amounting to 316,938,000,

On adoption of SFRS() 16 in 2018, ROU assels were recognised and included in leasehold land, leasahald
properties, certain machinery and motor vehicles of the Group and of the Company. The details are set cut in
Maote 20.
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10.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group

2019

Cost

Beginning of financial year
Additions

Written off

End of financial year

Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year
Amartisation

Written off

End of financial year

Net book value

End of financial year

2018

Cost

Baginning of finanacial year
Additions

End of financial year

Accumulated amortisation
Baginning of financial year
Amartisation

End of financial year

Net book value
End of financial year

Amortisation expense of 526,145,000 (2018: $23,976,000) has bean included in cost of sales.

Trademarks
and Goodwill on Computer
tradenames acquisition Licences software Total
£'000 £'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
- - 72,000 3,712 75,712
- - (66,000) (384} 66,384}
1,057 83,049 87,162 24,361 195,629
- - 70,019 12,969 82,9688
= = 24,572 1,573 26,145
- - (66,000) (384) (66, 384)
- - 28,591 14,158 42,749
1,057 83,049 58,571 10,203 152,880
1,067 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
- - - 2477 2,477
1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 156,301
- - 47,498 11,514 53,012
- - 22,521 1,455 23,978
- - 70,019 12,968 §2,988

1,067

83,0493

11,143

8,064

103,313
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10. INTANGIBELE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's CGUs identified according to geographical areas. A segment-level summary
of the allocation of goodwill with indefinite usaful life is as follows:

Group
2019 2018
§'000 £'000
Goodwill attributable to;
Singapore 83,047 53,047
Malaysia 2 2
83,049 83,049

The goodwill attributed to the Singapore CGU mainly arose from the acquisition of the remaining 25% equity
interest in Besorts Werld at Sentosa Pte. Ltd. ("RBWSPL") which developed the first integrated resort in Singaporne.
The impainment test for goodwill relating o the Singapore CGU was assessed using the value-in-use method.
Cash flow projections used in thiz calculation were bazed on financial budgets approved by management. The
cash flow projection covers a five-year period, Cash flows beyond tha five-year period were aextrapolatad using
the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the leisure and hospitality industry in which the CGU oparates.

Kay assumptions used in the valus-in-use calculation for 2019 include a growth rate and weighted average cost
of capital "WACC™) of 2.0% and 5.1% (2018: 2.0%, 7.3%) respectivaly.

Based on the impairment test, no impairment is required for goodwill atiributed to the Singapore CGLU. A
reasonably possible change in a key assumption on which management has based its determination of the

CGU's recoverable amount would not cause its carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

11.  INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Share of net assets of joint venture:
DCP (Sentosa) Pla, Lid. 62,239 58,252

O 15 April 2008, AWSPL enterad info a joint venture with Sentosa Leisure Management Pte, Lid. ("SLM") to
build and operate a district cooling plant on Santoza Island, Singapora, through the formation of DCP (Seantoga)
Pte, Ltd, ("DCPT), a private company incorporated in Singapore, RWSPL and SULM own 80% and 20% of the
share capital of DCP respectively. DCF is deemed to be a joint venture of the Group, as both RWSPL and SLM
have contractually agreed to the sharing of cantral in DCP.
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INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information of DCP is as follows:

2019 2018
$'000 £'000
Mon-current assets
Intangible asset - leasehold land use right 5,004 5,202
Propearty, plant and sguipment 65,795 §0,361
Other receivables 48 50
70,937 55,613
Current assets
Trade and ofther receivables 7.970 6,343
Cash and cash equivalents 26,984 23,006
34,954 29,349
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,341) (3,781
Incomea tax liabilitias (1,329) {1,289
4,6T70) (5.080)
Men-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities {6,813) {7, 067)
Leasa liabilities {16,609) -
[23,422) (7,067
Met assets _ 77,799 72,815
Revenua 21,170 19,870
|[Expenseslfincome include:
- Depreciation and amortisation {2,565) (3,098)
- Interest income 209 161
= Intarast expanse [S26) -
Profit before taxation 6,061 5,947
Taxation (1,077) (298
Profit after taxation and total comprehansive income 4,984 4,949

DCP does not have any contingent liabilities.
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11.  INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Raconciiiation of the summarizad financial information presented, to the carrying amount of the Group's intarest
in OGP, is as follows:

2019 20718

£'000 S'000
Met assets
Beginning of financial year 72,815 67 566
Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income 4,984 4,949
End of financial yvear 77,799 72,815
Carrying value of Group's interest in DCP 62,239 98,252

12. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2019 2018

$'000 £'000
Unguoted shares - at cost 144,522 242 038
Less: Allowancs for impairment - 43

144,522 241,935
Amount dus from subsidiary 2,074,000 2,074,000
Neat investment in subsidiaries 2,218,522 2,315,995

The amount dus from subsidiary is non-trade in nature, unsecured and interast-free. Repayments are not
expectad within the next 12 monthe. This amount i considerad part of nat investmeants in subsidianas.

The movaments in allowance for impairment are as follows:

Company

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 43 a3
Striking-off of subsidiary (43} -
End of financial year - 43
Details of the Company's significant subsidiary are as follows:

Country of Effactive equity interest

Indirect subsidiary incarporation 2019 2018 Principal activities
AWSPL Singapora 100% 100% Development and operation of an

Integrated Rasort at Sentosa
The financial statements of this subsidiary are audited by PricewaternouseCoopers LLF, Singapora.

The Group has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the listing manual issued by the SGX-5T in relation to the
appointment of its auditors,
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13.

DEFERRED TAX

Defarred tax assets and liabilities are offset whan there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against currant tax llabilities and whan the defarred taxes relate to the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined prior to offsetting, are shown in the statement of financial position:

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
Te ba recovered after ona year 276 171
Defarred tax liabilities
To be sattled after one yaar (231,382) (288,728)
Total deferred taxes {231,106) (288,557
Details of deferred taxes prior to offsetting are as follows:
Cradited/
Beginning of {charged) to End of
financial year profit or loss  financial year
Group $'000 5000 £°000
2019
Deferred tax assets
Pravisions 31s 1,505 1,820
Deferred tax liabilities
Proparty, plant and eguipment {287 ,156) 56,244 {230,912)
Intangitile assets (1,716) (298) (2,014)
(288,872) 55,946 {232,926)
Total deferred taxes (2588,557) 57,451 {231,106}
2018
Deferred tax assets
Provisions 23,262 (22.947) 316
Deferred tax liabilities
Proparty, plant and eguipment (304, 962) 17,806 (267 ,156)
Intangible assets {1,608) (108} {1,716}
(306,570) 17.698 {288,872)
Total deferred taxes (283,308} 5,249 {288,557)
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14.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group

2019 2018

£'000 S'000
Beginning of financial year 221,11 217,299
Fair value gain 13,551 3,097
Disposals - {1.475)
Exchange differences (1,431) 2,210
End of financial year 233,251 221,131
Quoted debt securities™ 195,407 183,137
Ungquoted debt securities® 37,844 37,994

233,251 221,13

lak The invesimenis in portfolio of quoted debt securities have no fixed malurily or coupon rate.
& The ivestmeants in ungueted debt securities represent unguated investment in a foreign corporation and an investment
fund.

15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Trade raceivablas 410,618 335,658 = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 97,17 45,031
Other recaivablas 24,998 32,148 22,168 24,451
Amounts due from subsidiaries of the
Litimate holding corporation 63 & - -
Loan ko a subsidiary - - 392,710 332,710
435,679 365,814 512,049 462,192
Less: Impairment (Mote 27(d) (312,389) (230,070) (99,119) (102,670
123,280 128,744 412,930 389,622
Daposits 4,072 5818 1 2
Prepaymants 10,082 11,230 180 72
137,454 143,792 413,111 S0 626
Mon-current
Amounts due from subsidiarias - - 127,175 179,287
Loan o a subsidiary - - 262,500 262,500
- = 389,675 441,787
Less: Impairment (Note 27(d)) - - {1,134) (52,225
- - 388,541 389,562
Prepayments a71 1,543 - -
a71 1,543 388,541 389,562
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15.

16.

17.

TRADE AMD OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The loans and amounts due from subsidiaries are mainly non-trade in nature, unsecured and interest-free except
for 3655,210,000 (2018: 8655,210,000) which are interast bearing, and 3388, 541,000 (2018: 8380, 562 000)
which repayments are not expected within the next 12 months. The current loan and amounts due from
subsidiaries are repayable on demand.

INVENTORIES
Group
2019 2018
$'000 5000
Ratail stocks 5,664 4,482
Food, beverage and hotel supplies 18,471 18,633
Stores and technical spares 24,560 25 691
48,695 48,806

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to 571,152,000
(2018: 382,288,000}

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Short-term deposits with banks 3,519,522 3,752,852 3,203,082 3,078,117
Cash and bank balances 427,728 461,686 236,593 252 543
Cash and cash equivalents in the
staternent of cash flows 3,947,250 4,214,237 3,529,675 3,328,680
Rastricted cash - 118,851 = =

Restricted cash as at 31 Decembear 2018 raprasented deposit pledged as security for loan repaymeants and
interest and this was fully releassd during the current financial year (Note 13(aj).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
5000 5000 5'000 S'000
Current
Trade payables 1,317 1,116 748 353
Accruad operating labilities 215,889 200 437 15,051 8,281
Accruad capital expenditure 12,334 11,1892 - -
Ratention monies and deposgits 4,691 4 664 = =
Contract liabilities 181,424 161,957 - -
Otihar payables 66,886 60,918 205 168
Amounts due to:
= Ultimate holding corporation 15 32 - -
- immadiate holding corporation o8 ad 26 26
= Subsidiaries - - 139,147 193,246
= Joint venture 6,859 5,447 - -
489,474 454 764 155,177 202,074
Mon-current
Retention monies and deposits 3ro 320 - -
Other payables 447 1,341 - -
B17 1,670 = -

Ratantion monies refar to amounts withheld from contractors’ claim for work done in accordance with contractual
rights, which are progressively released upon the complation of the projact.

Contract liabilities represant performance obligations that are contracted for but whose revenue have nol beean
recognised in the financial statements. They are expected to be recognised as revenue in the next financial year.

The following table summarnises the contract liabiliies activity related to contracts with customers:

Customer deposits Deferred revenue Other contract liabilities
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Group £'000 S000 S'000 S'000 5'000 £'000
Balance as at 1 January 70,033 62,833 33,699 37551 58,225 57,455
Balance as at 31 December 79,864 70,035 43,360 33,699 58,200 58,225
Incraasadecrasss) 9,831 7.200 9,661 [3.852) (25) 70

Customer deposits and deferred revenue represent cash racelved from customers for future gaming and

non-gaming services provided by the Group. Other contract liabilities mainly include loyalty program liabilities

and outstanding chips liabilities.

The amounts dus to ultimate holding corporation, immediate holding corporation and subsidiaries are mainly
non-trade in natura, unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on damand.
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19.

BORROWINGS
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Bank borrowings (a) - 203,017 - -
Lease liakilities (b} 3,991 3,358 56 =
3,991 206,375 56 -
Men-current
Bank borrowings (a) - 573,506 - -
Lease liabilities (b} 9,868 12,800 3 -
Baonds (c) 246,786 245,799 246,786 245,799
256,654 832,108 246,789 245,799
Total borrowings 260,645 1,038,570 246,845 245,799
(&) Bank borrowings
As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of the Group were substantially secured over assels of the
Singapore leisure and hospitality business segment (Note 24,
The Group mads a voluntary full prapavmant of the outstanding bank borfowings and cancellad the cradit
facilities on 25 April 2019, Restricted cash which had been pledged as secuwrity for loan repayments and
intarast was fully releasad (Mote 17).
(b}  Lease liabilities
As at 31 Decamber 2018, the Group only recognised lease liabilities in relation to leases that weare
classified as “finance leases™ (Note 21} under SFRS() 1-17. On 1 January 2013, the Group and the
Company adopted and recognizad lease liabilities (Note 20) in accordance with SFRS(I) 16. The effacts
of adoption of SFRS() 16 are set cul in Note 2.1.
(] Bonds

Or 24 Oelober 2017, the Company issued an unsecured and unsubardinated Japaness Yen-denaminated
bonds with a principal amount of Japanesa Yen 20,000,000,000 (approximately $240.240,000) in Japan,
acting through its Japan branch. The bonds have a coupon rate of 0.689% per annum and are due for
rapayment five years from the lssue date.

oOoOooodn
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20. LEASES
{a) When the Group and the Company is a lessee

The Group and the Company leases land, leasehold properties, machinery and motor vehicles with varnying
terms and condiions, The laase agreaments do nol IMposs any covenants,

(i) Carrying amounts of ROL assats

Group Company

31 December 1 January 31 December 1 January

2019 2019 2019 2019

$'000 5'000 £'000 £'000
Leasehold land 749,868 763,401 - -
Leasehold proporties 1,188 2,108 54 379
Machinery and motor vehicles 11,908 17,139 4 -
762,964 782 646 58 379

Additions to ROU azsats during the financial year amountad to $909,000 for the Group and 26,000
for the Comparny.,

i) Amounts recagnizad in the statement of comprahansive incoma

Group
2019
§'000
Depreciation on ROU assats:
Leasehold land 13,533
Leasehold propearties 1,162
Machinery and motor vehicles 4,269
18,964
Interast expanse (includead in finance costs) 1,615
Expenszas relating to short-term leases (includad in cost of sales,
administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses) 1,324

(iiiy Total cash outflow for leasas during the financial year is 57,741,000,
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20.

21.

LEASES (CONTINUED)
(b)  When the Group is a lessor

Tha Group leasaes out retail spaces and offices under operating leases, whore the Group retaing
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. The Group collects deposits from leases (o manage
cradit risk.

The undiscounted lease recaivables under aperating leases are as follows:

Group

2019

£'000
Mot later than one year 16,875
Ona to two years 11,231
Two to three years 4,860
Three to four years 1,416
Four to five years 774
Later than five years 44
35,200

FINANCE LEASES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group leased certain machinery and motor vehicles from third parties under finance
leasaz. Tha lease agreoments did not have renewal claugses but provide the Group with options to purchase the
leased assets at nominal value at the end of the lease term.

Group
2018
£'000
Finance leasa liabilities - minimum lease payments:
= Net later than one year 4,900
- Between cnae and five years 14,415
- Later than five yaars 1,487
20,807
Less: Future finance charges oan finance leases (4,649
Present value of finance leasa liabilities 16,158
The presant value of finance lease liabilities is as follows (Note 18):
- Nt later than one year 3,358
- Betwean one and five years 11,352
- Later than five years 1,448
16,156

Finance lease liabilities were sacured by the rights to the leased assets (Note 9), where the leszors shall be
entitled to ownership of the assats in the event of default by the Group,

On 1 January 2019, the Group has adopted SFRS( 16 and fnance lease liabilities ware reclassified o lease
liabilities. The affocts of adoption of SFRS(} 16 are sot out in Nota 2.1,
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22. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

Share capital Treasury shares
Me. of shares Amount Neo. of shares Amount

Group and Company '000 £'000 000 £'000
2019

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349)
Treasury shares reissued - - 7,240 5,808
End of financial year 12,004,027 5,527,705 [36,792) (29,541}
2018

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 {54,792) (44,432
Treasury shares reissued - - 10,7ED 9,083
End of financial year 12,094 027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,3459

Al issued crdinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares,
{a) Treasury shares

At the Annual General Masting ("AGMT) of the Company held on 17 April 2019, the shareholders of the
Company approved tha renewal of the authonty for the Company to purchase its shares of up to 10%
of tha izsued and paid-up shara capital of the Company at any point in timea.

During the financial year, the Company did not acquire any of its sharez through purchases on the
SGX-5T.

{b) Renounceable underwritten rights issue [(“2009 Rights Issuea™)

The Company had on @ Septembsr 2009 announced that the Company would be undertaking a
rencunceable rights issue of up to 2,043,716,094 new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
at an issue price of $0.80 for gach rights share on the basis of one right share for every 5 existing
ordinary shares in the Company held by the shareholders on 23 September 2009. Based on the iszued
share capital of the Company on 23 September 2008, 1,931,564,264 rights shares were available
under the 2009 Rights lzsus. The 2008 Rights Issue was oversubscribed and raized gross proceeds
of approximately 5155 billion for the Company. The 2000 Rights Issus was completed on 21 October
2009 with the listing and quotation of 1.931,564,264 rights shares on the Main Board of the SGX-5T.
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22. SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES (CONTINUED)
b} Renocunceable underwritten rights issue (“2009 Rights |ssue") (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the proceeds from the 2009 Rights Issue have been utilised in accordance
with its stated use and the breakdown is as follows:

£'000
Cost of issuance arsaz
Repayment of term loan facilities taken for the acquisition of Genting UK PLC 30,675
Repayment of the Group's $2.27 billien syndicated senlor secured credit facilities 217,817

Met repayment of revolving credit facility taken for the working capital of the Group's
UK cperations 70,000
Subscription of shares in subsidiaries 172,722
Irvestment in an associate 412,271
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 169,648
Fayment of oparating expanses of the Company and itz subsidiarias 284,475
1,395,440
Balance unutilised 149,811
Total proceeds 1,545,251
23. OTHER RESERVES
Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Parformance share reserve (a} 9,479 8,060 8,479 8,060
Exchange translation reserve (b} 7,295 7.182 {4) (83)
16,774 15,242 89,4735 7977

{a) Performance share reserve

Performance share reserve comprise cumulative fair value of services recaived from employees measured
at the date of grant for unvested equity-settled performance shares under the Genting Singapore
Parformance Share Scheme ("FPS37).

On B August 2007, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of the PES for an initial
pariod of up to 7 August 2017 (tha “Initial Pariod™}. The objective of the PSS is to attract and retain the
Group's executives, executive directors and non-executive directors, who are in the position 1o drive the
growth of the Company. Tha P33 gives the Company flexibility in relation to the Group's remunaration
package for the Group’s executives, executive directors and non-executive directors and allows the
Group to manage its fixed overheads, On 21 April 2016, the shareholdars of the Company approved
amendments to the rules of the PES and the extension of the duration of the PSS for a further period of
10 years, from & August 2017 to 7 August 2027 (both dates inclusive) (the “Extendad Pariod”).
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23. OTHER RESERVES [CONTINUED)
{a) Performance share reserve [Continued}

Under the PSS, the Company may grant to participants performance share awards which represent the
right of such participants to receive fully paid shares free of charge, upon such participants satisfying
the criteria set out in the PSS and such conditions as may be imposed. The number of shares which
ara the subject of sach parformance share award shall ba determined at the absolute discretion of tha
Remuneration Committes, which shall take into account various criteria including those set out in the
rules of the PSS, The Company will delivar shares to ba recaived undar a performance share award by
issuing new shares and/or fransferring treasury shares to the participants.

The total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant o performance share awards granted under
the PSS during the Initial Pericd shall not exceed 208,853,893 sharas, and when added to the numbear
of shares issued and/or issuable under such other share-basad incentive schemes of the Company, shall
not exceed 5% of the total number of isswed shares of the Company (excluding freasury sharas) from
time to ime. The total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to performance share awards
granted undar the PSS during the Extended Period shall not exceed 420,433,143 shares, and when
added lo the number of shares issued and/or issuable under such other share-based incentive schemes
of the Company, shall not excead 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (excluding
treasury shares) fram time to time,

The vesting of performance shares granted under PSS is subject to the achieving of pre-agreed sarvice
and/or parformance conditions ovar the parformance panod.

For performance ghare grante with pre-agreed sernvice conditions, the fair value was determined based
an the Company™s clasing market price at the date of grant, The weighted averages fair valug per share
granted in 2019 was 31.04 (2018: 51.13).

Movaments in the number of parformance shares cutstanding are as follows:

Group and Company

2019 2018
Beginning of financial year 7,405,000 10,930,000
Granted 12,905,500 7,595,000
Lapsed (855,350) (360,000
Issuad (7,240,150) (10,760,000
End of financial year 12,215,000 7,408,000
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23. OTHER RESERVES [CONTINUED)
{a) Performance share reserve [Continued}

A summary of the cumulative performance shares granted to the Directors of the Group since the
commancamant of the PSS are 221 cut balow:

Mumber of PSS granted

2019 2018

Directors

Tan S Lim Kok Thay 9,000,000 8,250,000
Mr Tan Hee Teck 37,630,000 35,380,000
Mr Tiong ik Min - 1,250,000
Mr Koh Saow Chuan 1,255,000 1,130,000
Mz Chan Swee Liang Carolina 125,000 -
Mr Tan Wah Yeow 250,000 125,000
Mr Jonathan Asharson 250,000 125,000

48,510,000 48,260,000

Othar than Tan S Lim Kok Thay and Mr Tan Hoee Teck who have been granted 750,000 and 2,250,000
PSS ghares respectively during the financial year, no othar employves has received 5% or maore of the
total number of performance share awards granted during the financial year,

{b) Exchange translation reserve
Exchange transiation reserve comprise foreign exchange differencas arising from the translation of the
financial statemeants of forgign operations whers functional currencies are different from the presentation

currency of the Group.

24. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT GRATUITIES

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

5000 5'000 $'000 S'000
Beginning of financial year 490 476 57 45
(Creditedycharged to profit or loss {158) =t - 12
Payment made (71} (39 - -
Exchange differences - 15 - -
End of financial year 263 490 a7 57

Ratirement gratuities are payable to certain employess upon their retirement. The gratuities provided are factored
for discount rates, based on interest rales available in the market for bonds with AAA ratings, and attrition rates
based on age bands.
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25. DIVIDENDS

Group and Company

2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Final dividends paid in respect of the previous financial year of 2.0 cents
(2018: 2.0 cants) per ordinary share™ 241,145 240,900
Interim dividends paid in respect of current financial vear of 1.5 cents
(2018: 1.5 cants) per ardinary sharg™ 180,858 180,675

fab O 17 Apeil 2019, the shareholders approved the payment of the final dividend of 2.0 cenls per ardinary share in raspect
of the fnancial year ended 31 December 2018. The dividend has bean accounted for in shareholdars” equily as an
appropriation of retained eamings in the financial year ended 31 December 2016,

1 On 2 August 2019, the Directors approvied the intenim diidend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share in reapect of the financial
yvear ended 31 December 2019, The dividend has been accounted for in sharehalders’ equity as an appropriation of
redainad earnings in the financial year ended 31 Desermber 2019,

The Cirectors proposed the payment of a final dividend of 2.5 cents per ordinary share, in respect of the financial
yvaar anded 31 Decambar 2019, subject to the approval of shareholders at the naxt AGM of tha Company.
These financial statemeants do not reflect this dividend, which will be accounted for in shargholdars' equity as
an appropriation of retained sarmings in the financial year ending 31 Decembar 2020, after it has beaen approvad
by shareholders at the AGM.

26. COMMITMENTS

{a) Capital commitments

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Authorised capital expenditure not provided for in the
financial statamants:
Contracted - property, plant and equipment including
capital expenditure committed in relation (o expansion of
integrated resort 4,485,538 61,682

RWSPL entered into a second supplemental agreement with Sentosa Development Corporation ("SDCT)
on 3 Aprl 2019, in ralation to the construction, developmeant and establishment of an expanded intagratad
resort, and committed to invest approximately S4.5 Bdlion in a renewal and refresh of the integrated resort.
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26. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(e

Operating lease commitments - Where the Group and the Company is a lessee

The Company leases offices and the Group leases offices and equipment under non-cancellable operating
leasa agreements, These leases have varying terms and renawal rights.

Ag at 31 Dacember 2018, the fulure minimum leasa pavablas under non-cancellable oparating laases
were as follows:

Group Company

2018 2018

£'000 £'000
Mot later than one year 2,550 330
Batween one and five years 2,195 55
4,745 346

As discloged in Mote 2.1, the Group and the Company have adopted SFRSE) 16 on 1 January 2019,
These lease payments have been recognised as ROU assels and lease liabilities on the balance sheet
a5 at 31 Decembear 2019, exeept for short-lerm and low value leases,

Operating lease commitments — Where the Group is a lessor

The Group leases cut ratail spaces and offices under non-cancellable oparating easas. These leases have
varying terms and ranewal rights. Generally, the lessees are required to pay contingent rents computed
based on their umover achieved during the lease panod.

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operaling leases wera as follows:

Group
2018
£'000
Not later than oneg year 16,686
Batween one and five years 16,686
Later than five vears 126

33,498

As disclosed in Note 2.1, the Group has adopted SFRS() 16 on 1 January 2019, The undiscounted leasa
payments from the operating leases o be received after 31 December 2019 is disclosed in Note 20.

GENTING SINGAPORE ARMUAL REPORT 2019 | 9F

168/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's overall financial risk management objective is to optimise value creation for shareholders. The Group
saaks fo minimise the potentlal adverse impact arising from fluctuations in forelgn exchange and Interest rates
and the unpredictability of the financial markets on the Group's financial performance.

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risk management is carried out through risk reviews conductad at all significant operational units. This process
is further enhanced by effective internal controls, a group-wide insurance programme and adherance to the
financial rizk managemant policies.

The main areas of financial risk faced by the Group are as follows:
{a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to foreign
curency translation risk, Currency exposure anising from the net assets of the Group's foreign operations
is managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant forelgn currencies.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk when the Company and its subsidiaries enter
into transactions that are not denaminated in their functional currencies. To manage thess exposures,
the Group takes advantage of any natural offsets of the Group's revenue and axpansas denominated in
foreign currencies and may from time to time enter into forsign exchange forward contracts for a portion
of tha remaining exposura ralating to thess foracast transactions when deomad appropeiate.

The Group's and Company's principal net foreign currency exposuras mainly ralate to the United States
Dedlar (*USDE).

The Group's and Company's currency exposures are as follows:

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
usp £'000 $'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair valus through

profit or loss 112,878 105,241 - -

Trade and other receivables 587 2320 545 Th2
Cash and cash equivalents 78,309 126,004 77,516 125,679

191,784 234,355 78,081 126,431
Financial liakilities
Trade and other payables {3,828) (5,203) (994) (5500
Lease liabilities {11,902) {16,151} - -

{15,730) {21.,354) (994) (550
Met currency exposuras 176,054 213,001 77,067 125,881
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

(@)

[14]

{e)

Foreign currency exchange risk (Continued)

If the USD changes against the Singapore Dollar ("3GD") by 1% (2018: 1%) with all other variables being
held constant, the effacts on profit before taxation will be as follows:

Increase/(decreasea)
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
5000 5'000 $'000 5000
USD against G0
- Strengthened 1,761 2,130 T 1,258
- Weakanad {1,761} (2,130 (771} (1,269
Price risk

The Group is exposed to sscurities price risk from its quotad securities classified as financial assats at fair
value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk anging from thesa invastmeants, the Group diversifios
its portfolio, Diversification of the portfelio is dona in accordance with the limits sat by the Group,

If prices for quoted securities change by 1% (2018 1%) respectively with all other variablas being held
constant, the aeffects on profit before will be as follows:

Increasel{decrease)
Group
2019 2018
$'000 5'000
Profit before taxation
Increased by 1% 1,854 1.831
Decreased by 1% {1,954) {1,831)

Tha Company is not exposad to price risk,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises mainly from the Group's bank borrowings which bore fioating intarest rate.

As at 31 Decamber 2018, if the annual Interest rates levied on bank borrowings had increazed/decreased
by 100 basis point with all other variables including tax rate being held constant, the profit belore
taxation would be lower/higher by 38,719,000 as a result of higher/lower interest expense on these
bank borrowings. The Group made a veluntary full prepayment of the outstanding bank borrowings and

cancelled the cradit facilities on 25 April 2019,

Ag at 31 Dacember 2019, the Group and the Company are not subjact to material interest rate risk.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED}
{d)  Credit risk

Cradit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the faillure of counterparties of the Group, to sattle
their financial and contractual obligation as and when they fall due.

The Group's main class of financial assets that are subject to credit risk are trade and other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
Group's financial assels except trade and other receivables are subjectad to immaterial credit loss,

As the Group does not hold any collataral, the maximum exposure 1o cradit risk for each class of financial
instruments is the carning amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statements of
financial position.

Trade receivables

In managing cradit risk exposure from trade receivables, majority of which are related to casing debtors,
the Group has established a credit committes and processes to evaluate the creditworthiness of its
counterparties. The counterparty's payment profile and credit exposure are continuously monitored by the
cradil commities, togather with the operational palicies and guidelines. Credit expasure fo an individual
counterparty is restricted by the credit limits set by the credit committee based on the ongeing credit
svaluation. Tha top 10 trade deblors of the Group representad 20% (2018: 19%) of trade receivables.

In measuring the lifetime expected credit losses, the Group uses the provision maltrix method where trade
receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past due. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles and the comesponding historical credit lossas exparianced.
The Group has considered forward-looking information and determined that it does not significantly atfect
the historical cradit losses.

The Group consziders a trade receivable as credit impaired when one of more events that have a
defrimantal impact on the aestimated cash flow have occurred, Thase instances include adversa changes
in the financial capability of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

The movernants in allowance for impairment on trade receivables are as follows:

Group

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 239,070 159,418
Charged to profit or loss 110,021 79,671
Allowance utilissd (36,696) (14)
Exchange differences {G) (3]
End of financial year 312,389 239,070

Trade recalvables are written off when thare is no reasonable expactation of recovery, with tha case-by-
case assassment performed based on indicators such as insolvency or demise, Where receivables are
written off, the Group continuas to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivables
due, Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss,
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables [Continued)

The Group's credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables are as follows:

Group

2019
Trade receivables
Allewancs for impairment

Total

2018
Trade receivabies
Allowancs for impairment

Total

Other receivables

Past due Fast due Past due

less than 3 to more than

Mot past due 3 months & months 6 months Total

$'000 $'000 5000 5'000 5000
115,137 66,033 55,618 173,830 410,618
(24,262) (58,757} (55,568) (173,802) (312,389
90,875 7,276 50 28 98,229
84,768 91,634 50,325 106,931 333,658
(10,557) (7¥1,318) (50,264) (108,931) {239,070)
74,211 20,318 61 - 94,588

Tha Group and the Company use the below intermal cradit risk categories for other receivabdes which
ara subject to expacted credit losses approach permitted under SFRS() 9@ Financial Instrumants. The
4 categones reflect the respective credit risk and how the koss provision is determinad for each of those

categorias as follows:

Category

Description

Basis for recognition of
expected credit losses

*  Parforming

*  Lnder-performing

+  MNon-performing

*  Write-off

Low risk of default and a strong
capacity to meat confractual cash flows.

Significant increasa in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Evidence indicating that the assat
is imnpaired,

Mo reasonable expectation of recovery.

12-month expectad credit losses

Lifetime axpactad cradil losses

Lifetime expected credit losses

Amount is written off

The Group and Company bave no financial assats thal are subjact to more than immaterial credit losses
where the expected credit loss model has been applied except for the Company’s amounts due from
subsidiaries and loan to a subsidiary (Note 15) which arg undar-perfarming.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
{d) Credit risk (Continued)
Other receivables [Continued)

The movements in allowance for impairment on other receivables are as follows:

Company

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 154,795 129,496
{Cradited)/charged to profit or loss (991} 24,200
Allcwance utilised {51,797) -
Exchange differences 1,754) 1,090
End of financial year 100,253 154,735

fe)  Liguidity risk

The Group practisas prudent liquidity risk management to minimisa the mismatch of financial asssts
and liabilities. The Group's cash flow iz reviewed regulary to ensure that the Group is able to settla its
commitments when thay fall dus,

Cash flow foracasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and agaregatad for Group
purposes. The Group monitors ralling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to mest operational needs whils maintaining sufficiant headreom on its undrawn borrowing faciities at all
times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal ratio targets.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant maturity
groupings based on tha remaining pencd as al reporting date 1o the contractual maturity date, The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{e) Liquidity risk {Continued)

Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
2019
Trade and other payablas® 308,050 447 370 -
Bonds 1,658 1,658 249,165 -
Lease lizbilities 4,956 3,850 8,002 -
314,664 5,955 257,537 -
2018
Trade and other payablas” 292 807 1377 283 -
Bank borrowings 231,475 580,139 - -
Bonds 1,654 1,654 250,187 -
Lease liabilites 4,900 3,660 10,746 1,402
530,836 556,830 261,226 1,402
Company
2019
Trade and othar payablag® 155177 - - -
Bonds 1,658 1,658 249,165 -
Lease liabilities 57 2 1 =
156,802 1,660 249 166 -
2018
Trade and other payablag” 202074 - - -
Bonds 1,654 1,654 250,187 -
203,728 1,654 250,187 -

Excludes contract liabiities
(f) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern In order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

In order to optimise the capital structurs, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, refurn capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, fake on new
debt or sall assats to reduce debt.

Consistent with the industry, the Group monitors capital utilisation based on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total dabt divided by total capital, Total debt is calculated as total borrowings.
Total capital is calculated as equily attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company plus total debt,
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)
{f} Capital risk management (Continued)

The gearing ratios are as follows:

Group
2019 2018
£'000 £'000
Total debt 260,645 1,038,570
Total equity atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 8,057,589 7,781,345
Total capital 8,318,234 8,519,915
Gearing ratio 3% 12%

There ware no changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the cunrant financial year.

Az at 31 December 2019, the Group was not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group was in compliance with externally imposad capital requirements,

{g)  Fair value estimation

The foliowing table presents the Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by

level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

(i Cuoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assats or labilities (Level 1);

(if) Inputs other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either direstly (i.e, as prcas) of indiractly (e, darved from prices) (Lavel 2} and

{iiip Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Group £°000 5'000 $'000 5000
2019
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Note 14) 195,407 37,844 233,251
2018
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Mote 14) 183,137 37 294 221,131
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
{g) Fair value estimation [Continued)
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2.

Thie fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is basad on closing quoted market prices
on the last market day at the reporting data. A markel! is regarded as active if quotad pricas are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing sarvice, o regulatory
agency, and those prices reprasent actual and regularly cccurring market transactions on an arm's length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in Lavel 1.

The fair value of financial instrumants that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter darivatives) is determined by using valualion techniques, These valuation techniques maximise
the use of cbservable market data whara it is avallable and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are cbservaiie, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

The Group uses a varety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date, Quoted market prices or dealer quates for similar instruments are used
to estimate fair value for long term debt for disclosure purposes. Other technigues, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used o determing fair value for the remaining financial instrumants.,

It one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is includad
in Level 3. Changing one or more of the unobservable inputs in the valuation technique used for Level 3
instrumants will not significantly impact the fair value of thess instruments, The assessment of the fair
value of unguoted debt securities is performed on a quarterly basis based on the latest available data
such as underlying net assat value of the investees entity to approximate the fair value as at reparting date,

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Group

2019 2018

£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 37,994 36,656
Disposals - (1,475)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss ara 1,991
Exchange differences (523) g2z
End of financial year 37,844 37,994

The tair value of currant and non-currant financial asssets and liakiities approximate thear camying amaounts,
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT [CONTINUED)

{h)

Financial instruments by category

The aggregate carrying amounts of financial instruments are categorised as follows:

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assets at amortised cost 4,074,612 4,465,650 4,331,147 4,077 546
Financial assets at falr value through
profit or loss 233,251 221,131 - -
Financial liabilities at amartised cost 569,512 1,333,047 402,022 447,873

28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company's immediate holding corporation is Genting Cverseas Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in the lsle of Man. The ultimate holding corporation s Genting Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia and

whose sharas are listed on the Bursa Malaysia Sscuritiss Berhad.

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated linancial statements, the following
significant transactions ook place batwaan the Group and related parties:

fii Sales of goods and/or services to:
- A joint venture
- Other related parties

fiij Purchases of goods and/or services from:

— A joint vantura
- Other related parties

Group

2019 2018

£'000 5'000
1,260 1,107
1,402 1,392
2,662 2,499
(21,170 (18,870
[540) (2,687)
{21,710) (22 55T}

106 | GENTING SINGAPORE AMMUAL BEPORT 2010

177/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES [CONTINUED)
Key management remuneration (including directers’ remuneration):

Key management remuneration includes fees, salaries. bonus, commission and other emoluments computed
bazad on the costs incurrad by the Group, and where the Group did not Incur any costs, tha valua of the baneafit,

The ramuneration of directors and the key management parsonnel are analysad as follows:

Group
2019 2018
$'000 5000
Mon-executive diractors
- Feas and meeting allowances 1,380 1,425
- Share-based paymant 535 560
1,915 1,985
Executive directors
= Faas and meeling allowancas 15 =]
- Salaries, bonus and ather emaluments 16,156 15,714
Defined contribution plan 29 29
- Share-based paymeant 2,140 2,995
18,391 18,6813
Total 20,306 20,798
Key management personnel {excluding directors’ remuneration)
= Salaries, bonus and other emoluments 5,538 6,100
- Definad contribution plan 165 192
= Share-based paymant 2,148 1,652
Total 7,851 7044
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29. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has dsetermined the operating segments based on the reports that are used by the chief operating
decislon-maker to make strategic declisions.

The chief operating decision-maker congidars the business from both business and geographic perspactives,
Business segment

The Singapore leisure and hospitality segment derives revenue from the development and operation of the
integrated resort,

Lnder the Development Agreament signed between the S0C and the Group, the Group is required to construct,
devalop and operate a resort with a comprehensive range of integrated and synergised amanities for racraation,
emartainment and lifestyle uses, This includes key attractions such as holals, event facilities, retail, dinirg,
entertainment shows, thamed attractions and casing, which must be at all times operated and managed togather,
Each key attraction cannot be closed without prior written approval from S0,

The investment business derives revenue from investing in asssts to generate future income and cash flows.

Sales between segments afe carmed oul at anm's length. The revenue from external parties reparted to the
chiaf operating decision-maker i maasurad In a manner consistant with that in the statement of comprahansive
income.

The chigf operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure
of adjusted samings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“Adjusted EBITDA). This meazsuremeant
basis excludes the effects of gaindoss on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as hald-for-sale, sharg-based
payment, net exchange gainfoss ralating to investments and other incomea/expansas which include impairment/
write-oft/gaindloss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, pre-opening/development expensas and other
non-recurring adjustmants.

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade and other
recaivables, financial assats at fair valua through profit or loss, restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents,

Segment liabiliffes comprise all liabilities other than current and deferred tax liabilities and borrowings.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Group
2019

Gaming

Mon-gaming

Other revenue
Inter-sagment revanua

External revenue

Adjusted EBITDA

Share of results of joint veniure
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amartisation of intangible assets

Assets

Segment assels
Interests in joint venture
Defarred tax azsats

Consclidated total assets

Segment assats include:
Additions to;
Property, plant and eguipment
- Intangible assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities
Borrowings

Income tax liabilities
Dafarred tax habilitias

Consclidated total liabilities

Leisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others” Investments Total

£'000 $'000 §'000 &'000
1,619,667 - - 1,619,667
832,389 - - 832,389
25,477 506 6.011 31,994
- - {3,710) (3,710}
2,477,533 506 2,30 2,480,340
1,232,284 {5,523) (37,128) 1,189,633
3,887 - - 3,987
(362,164) - {1,492) [363,656)
{28,145) - = (286,145)
5,155,953 5,817 4,025,793 9,187,563
62,239 = = 62,239

L2

9,250,078
169,408 - 3,388 172,796
75,712 - - 75,712
470,473 2,344 17,737 490,554
260,645
209,906
231,382
1,192, 487

Other leisure and hospitality segment mainly represants other support senices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FCR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

29. SEGMENT INFORMATIOMN (CONTINUED)

Leisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others” Investments Total

Group

2018 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
GEaming 1,678,987 - - 1,678,987
Mon-gaming B34,235 - - 834,235
Other revenue 23,453 &7 S5.967 30,187
Inter-sagment revanus - - (4,174) (4,174)
External revenue 2,536,675 TET 1,793 2,539,235
Adjusted EBITDA 1,260,702 [6,852) (24,175} 1,229,675
Share of results of joint veniure 3,959 - - 3,959
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {280,428) - {1,115} {291,541)
Amartisation of imangible assets [23.978) B = (23,978
Assots

Segment assels 5,875,922 21,067 3.811.730 9,708,719
Interests in joint venture 58,252 = - 58 252
Defarred tax assals 171

Consclidated total assets Q.767,142

Segment assats include:

Additions to:
= Property, plant and equipmeant 89,220 = 5249 82,819
- Intangible assets 2477 - - 2477
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 444,818 2,195 8.911 456,024
Borrowings 1,038,570
Income tax liabilities 201,573
Defarred tax liabilities 288,728

Consolidated tolal liabiities 1,985,795

Other beisure and hospitality segment mainly reprasants other support serices,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2049

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before taxation is provided as follows:

Adjusted EBITDA for reportable segments
Share-based payment

Met exchange loss relating to investments
Depreciation and amaortisation

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of results of joint venture

Gain on disposal of asset classified as held for sale

Other income (net)”

Profit before taxation

Group

2019 2m8

£'000 £'000
1,189,633 1,229,675
(9,530} (9,208)
(8,871) 2,512
{389,801) {315,517
80,073 72,342
(20,495) (35,913
3,987 3,859
- 118
1,910 292
846,906 943,238

Other income (ne) include gaindless) on disposalimpairmentwrite-off of property, plant and equipment, pre-opemings
developmaent expenses and othes non-recurming adjustrmants.

Geographical information

The Group operates predominantly in Asia. The main business of the Group is in leisure and hospitality operations
in Singapore whera the development and oparation of an Integrated resort contributas most of its revenua. Tha
operations in other geographical areas in the Asia Pacific (excluding Singapors) are sales and marketing services
relating to the Group's leisure and hospitality related businessas and othar investmeants.

Revanue iz classified basad on the location in which revenues is derivad, Sales batwesan segments ara aliminated.
Mon-current assets exclude deferred tax assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Revenue
Singapore
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapora)

Mon-current assets
Singapore
Asia Pacific (excluding Singapare)

Group
2019 2018
£'000 5'000

2,479,093 2538799
347 436

2,480,340 2,539,235

4,878,732 5,016,141
4,420 4,013

4,883,152 5,020,154

There is no revenus derived from transactions with a single external customer that amounted to 10% or more

of the Group's revenue.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

30. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
on 12 February 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GENTING SINGAPORE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Genting Singapore Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and of the consolidated financial performance,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2019;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019;
the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the financial year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgments; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that
are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material

misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
1. Estimation of tax provisions

See Note 3(a) of the financial statements for
related accounting policies, estimates and
judgements for further information.

This was a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in evaluating
the capital allowances claim for items within
the leasehold improvements and fixtures and
fittings asset categories which are not
common and have few precedents, and the
deductibility of certain expenses.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
income tax provisions of $210 million and
deferred tax liabilities of $231 million.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of management’s processes and
controls for identifying and calculating tax-related provisions.

We read all relevant correspondences with the tax authorities, in
particular those relating to the availability of capital allowances
for certain assets and the deductibility of certain expenses. We
issued by
authorities and obtained an understanding of the latest position in

considered relevant historical assessments tax
all open tax matters relating to material items including the

conclusions reached during the year.

With the advice of our tax specialists, we considered relevant
information gathered through the above procedures in assessing the
reasonableness of management’s revisions to its estimates and
management’'s assumptions regarding the Group’s tax positions.

Based on procedures performed, we found management’s
assessment on the availability of capital allowances for certain
assets and deductibility of certain expenses in determining the
Group’s tax provision to be consistent with our understanding.
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Key Audit Matter

2. Impairment of trade receivables

See Note 3(b) of the financial statements for
the related accounting policies, estimates

and judgements and Note 27(d) for the credit
risk exposure.

The
majority of which were related to casino

impairment of trade receivables,
debtors, was a key audit matter
significant judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses.

These significant judgements included:

as
was

(i) grouping of trade receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and
days past due;

(i) expected loss rates based on historical

credit loss experience; and

(iii) identification of indicators of when

trade receivables are credit impaired.

As at 31 December 2019, allowance for
impairment amounted to $312 million and an
impairment charge of $101 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2019.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of the processes for credit
assessment and approval, and impairment assessment of trade
receivables. We tested the operating effectiveness of relevant

controls including the following:

checked on a sampling basis that credit assessment has
been appropriately completed in accordance with the Group
's standard operating procedures for credit granting;

checked on a sampling basis the authorisation of credit

based on the Group’s approval matrix for credit

transactions; and

read the minutes of all the meetings of the credit committee
(which is responsible for the monitoring of trade receivables
and approval of impairment provisions) and checked that
monitoring and credit risk assessment is performed.

We reviewed the credit evaluation and monitoring files relating
to selected trade receivables. We held discussions with the
the
receivables to understand the judgements exercised in assessing

chairperson of credit committee about these trade

the expected credit loss of these trade receivables.
We assessed the appropriateness of judgements made by
management based on historical trend of collections and external

data.

Based on the above, we are satisfied that the judgements made by
management are appropriate.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the chairman’s statement, 2019
highlights, board of directors, management and corporate information, corporate diary & RWS management team, financial
highlights & awards and accolades, year in review, corporate social responsibility, corporate governance, directors’
statement and group offices (but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon), which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the other sections of the annual report (“the Other Sections”) which are

expected to be made available to us after that date.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Other Sections, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and SFRS(I)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

205/206



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matterscommunicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and the other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the

provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reportis Tan Boon Chok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 12 February 2020
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